

PEOPLEMAP ON WESTLAWNEXT USER GUIDE



THOMSON REUTERS

Customer Service

WestlawNext PeopleMap

Visit **legalsolutions.com/peoplemap**. For more information, contact your representative at **1-888-728-7677**.

Contents

Contents

1 WELCOME TO PEOPLEMAP ON WESTLAWNEXT. 1 Reasons to use PeopleMap on WestlawNext 1
2 GETTING STARTED 2 Accessing PeopleMap on WestlawNext 2
3 SEARCH OPTIONS 4 Overview 4 Public Records – Global Search 5 Public Records Category Page – Template Search 6 Permissible Use 8
4 PEOPLEMAP RESULTS
Overview
People Results
Update
Filter (Narrow) People Results
Sort People Results
Show Results
View Details
Select and Deliver People Results
Update Permissible Uses
Access Person Record
Create Report
People Results – Person Record 17
Person Record tools
Graphical Display
Entity-to-Entity Graphical Display (default view) 19
Entity-to-Document Graphical Display20
Graphical Display Toolbar/Tools
Address Map
Address Map Toolbar/Tools
Web Analytics
Web Analytics Toolbar/Tools
Report

5 PEOPLEMAP REPORTS	
Overview	27
Creating a Report	
Create Report from Initial Results List	
Additional Access Points to Create Reports	
PeopleMap Report Overview	
degrees of separation and Other Address Associations	
Customizing PeopleMap Reports	
Reports Toolbar/Tools	33
WestlawNext Research History	
6 RECORDS	
Overview	
Records Results	
Filter (Narrow) Records Results	
Records Results Tools	
Viewing Records Results	
Full-Text Records Tools	40
	12
7 BUSINESS RESULTS AND COMPANY INVESTIGATOR	
7 BUSINESS RESULTS AND COMPANY INVESTIGATOR	43
 7 BUSINESS RESULTS AND COMPANY INVESTIGATOR. Businesses Results. 8 PEOPLEMAP ALERTS 	
 7 BUSINESS RESULTS AND COMPANY INVESTIGATOR. Businesses Results. 8 PEOPLEMAP ALERTS. Stay on top of changes with PeopleMap Alerts. 	43 43 44 44
 7 BUSINESS RESULTS AND COMPANY INVESTIGATOR. Businesses Results. 8 PEOPLEMAP ALERTS Stay on top of changes with PeopleMap Alerts . Easy Setup . 	43
 7 BUSINESS RESULTS AND COMPANY INVESTIGATOR. Businesses Results. 8 PEOPLEMAP ALERTS Stay on top of changes with PeopleMap Alerts . Easy Setup . Quick Retrieval. 	43 43 44 44 44 44 44
 7 BUSINESS RESULTS AND COMPANY INVESTIGATOR. Businesses Results. 8 PEOPLEMAP ALERTS Stay on top of changes with PeopleMap Alerts . Easy Setup . Quick Retrieval. Frequent Alerting . 	43 43 44 44 44 44 44
 7 BUSINESS RESULTS AND COMPANY INVESTIGATOR. Businesses Results. 8 PEOPLEMAP ALERTS Stay on top of changes with PeopleMap Alerts . Easy Setup . Quick Retrieval. Frequent Alerting . Seamless Integration . 	43 43 44 44 44 44 44 44 44
 7 BUSINESS RESULTS AND COMPANY INVESTIGATOR. Businesses Results. 8 PEOPLEMAP ALERTS Stay on top of changes with PeopleMap Alerts . Easy Setup . Quick Retrieval. Frequent Alerting . Seamless Integration . 9 MOBILE PEOPLEMAP 	43 43 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44
 7 BUSINESS RESULTS AND COMPANY INVESTIGATOR. Businesses Results. 8 PEOPLEMAP ALERTS Stay on top of changes with PeopleMap Alerts . Easy Setup . Quick Retrieval. Frequent Alerting . Seamless Integration . 9 MOBILE PEOPLEMAP Overview . 	43 43 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 4
 7 BUSINESS RESULTS AND COMPANY INVESTIGATOR. Businesses Results. 8 PEOPLEMAP ALERTS Stay on top of changes with PeopleMap Alerts . Easy Setup . Quick Retrieval. Frequent Alerting . Seamless Integration . 9 MOBILE PEOPLEMAP Overview . 	43 43 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 45
 7 BUSINESS RESULTS AND COMPANY INVESTIGATOR. Businesses Results. 8 PEOPLEMAP ALERTS Stay on top of changes with PeopleMap Alerts . Easy Setup . Quick Retrieval. Frequent Alerting . Seamless Integration . 9 MOBILE PEOPLEMAP Overview . 9 HELP AND SUPPORT 	43 43 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 45 45 45
 7 BUSINESS RESULTS AND COMPANY INVESTIGATOR. Businesses Results. 8 PEOPLEMAP ALERTS Stay on top of changes with PeopleMap Alerts . Easy Setup . Quick Retrieval. Frequent Alerting . Seamless Integration . 9 MOBILE PEOPLEMAP Overview . 9 HELP AND SUPPORT Technical Support. Wastlaw Next December Map 	43 43 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 45 45 46 46 46
 7 BUSINESS RESULTS AND COMPANY INVESTIGATOR. Businesses Results. 8 PEOPLEMAP ALERTS Stay on top of changes with PeopleMap Alerts . Easy Setup . Quick Retrieval. Frequent Alerting . Seamless Integration . 9 MOBILE PEOPLEMAP Overview 9 HELP AND SUPPORT Technical Support. WestlawNext PeopleMap . Curtamer Sensice 	
 7 BUSINESS RESULTS AND COMPANY INVESTIGATOR. Businesses Results. 8 PEOPLEMAP ALERTS Stay on top of changes with PeopleMap Alerts . Easy Setup . Quick Retrieval. Frequent Alerting . Seamless Integration . 9 MOBILE PEOPLEMAP Overview . 9 HELP AND SUPPORT Technical Support. WestlawNext PeopleMap . Customer Service . Deference Attenance 	43 43 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 44 45 45 45 45

1 Welcome to PeopleMap on WestlawNext

PeopleMap on WestlawNext is the premier public records solution now available on the most advanced legal research platform. It gives you the freedom to perform all of your legal research in one place, saving you time and energy.

Reasons to use PeopleMap on WestlawNext

- Seamless integration with WestlawNext content for a more comprehensive and efficient public records search
- Filtering and relevancy ranking bring the most pertinent results to the top
- Enhanced graphical displays help you identify hidden connections faster
- Web analytics bring together a subject's Web and social media activity
- Global search and templates to research the way you want
- Customization of reports and searches gives you the flexibility to create a tailored research experience
- Deep linking and connections between PeopleMap and Company Investigator for a complete due diligence package
- Full-text search of all the underlying content with source , coverage and reported date information
- Integration with Firm Central and Concourse allow you to run global searches and access foldered information

2 Getting Started

Accessing PeopleMap on WestlawNext

PeopleMap is accessible on WestlawNext. To access PeopleMap:

- 1. Log in to WestlawNext using your WestlawNext OnePass Username and Password.
- 2. Select or enter the appropriate Client ID and click Continue.

Westlaw <mark>Next</mark>	
Welcome, Patricia Stark. Client ID:	Return to your recent research:
1001001007	Rule 77. Conducting Business; Clerk's Authority; Notice of an Order or Judgment FRCP Rule 77
CONTINUE	SUPREME COURT OF THE UNITED STATES PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE FEDERAL RU CIVIL PROCEDURE, RULE 77

Figure 2-1. Select or enter Client ID on WestlawNext

- After selecting or entering your Client ID, you have two ways to search for public records: a simple global search from the WestlawNext Home page of basic criteria like a person name and address or a template search for users who frequently search for public records or would like a more customized experience.
- 4. **People**, **Businesses**, and all available underlying **Records** are searchable together on WestlawNext:
 - **People:** Searches all available people records, with access to **PeopleMap** reports, web analytics, real-time information, and visualization research tools including graphical display.
 - Businesses: Searches all available business entities, with access to Company Investigator reports and Company Family trees.
 - **Records:** Searches public records across all available content sets with result list and full-text information. Records represents a complete replacement for WestlawClassic Database content searching.

If you do not see a Public Records link, please call Reference Attorneys at 1-800-REF-ATTY (1-800-733-2889) or your sales representative to gain access.

West	lawNext ⁻		powered by WestSearch [®]
Q+Enter s	earch terms, citations, data	bases; anything	
Browse			
All Content	Federal Materials State Ma	terials Practice Areas Tools	
Cases		Briefs	Public Records
Key Numb	ers	Trial Court Documents	Dockets
Trial Court	Orders	Expert Materials	News
Statutes &	Court Rules	Jury Verdicts & Settlements	Business Law Center
Regulation	8	Proposed & Enacted Legislation	Company Investigator
Administra	tive Decisions & Guidance	Proposed & Adopted Regulations	Sample Agreements
Secondary	Sources	Arbitration Materials	Legislative History

Figure 2-2. Global search or template search via WestlawNext Home page

3 Search Options

Overview

Use the **WestlawNext Global Search box** to search all available people, businesses, and records in parallel with a wealth of other WestlawNext primary and secondary legal content, including Caselaw, Statutes, Regulations, Secondary Sources, Briefs, Trial Court Documents, Experts, Jury Verdicts & Settlements, and more.

PeopleMap looks for public records terms entered as free-text words in the **WestlawNext Global Search box**. Public Records searches may be triggered when inputting one or more of the following types of information:

- Person name
- Address (full or partial)
- Social Security Number (in combination with a name)
- Date of birth (in combination with a name)
- Phone number
- Drivers license number
- License plate number
- Vehicle identification number
- Business name
- Ticker symbol
- Federal employer identification number
- DUNS number (Dun & Bradstreet)
- Email address
- Global search will also run fielded boolean terms and connector searches similar to T&C searches as done in WestlawClassic.

Use the **Public Records Category Page templates** to perform a more refined search. Power users tend to favor researching in this dedicated public records solution for efficiency and search flexibility. Using template fields is the most precise way to find exactly the information you need.

Whether searching via the **WestlawNext Global Search box** or **Public Records Category Page templates**, there are many ways to search the system:

- Free-text search in the Global Search box the system determines the best search to be processed.
- Template search via Public Records Category Page the system processes the search against the fields submitted by the user.
- Fielded Boolean Terms & Connectors search in the Global Search box this search is honored just like a Westlaw Classic Public Records search for the Records workflow.

Public Records – Global Search

1. To conduct a **Global Search**, enter terms, such as the name of the person and state into the Global Search box and click **Search**. PeopleMap determines the best search to process when free-text searching in the Global Search box.

WestlawNext [®]	powered by WestSearch"		
Q-jane sample-document	All Federal	•	SEARCH
		-	

Figure 3-1. Global search

2. When a public records search is identified, the Public Records category on the left will contain counts. The Public Records category on the right-hand side is split into categories of People, Businesses, and Records with applicable counts.

Note that actual counts may change based on factors such as permissible use selections and the addition of results added below direct result hits that may be applicable, including those with close household and business associations.



Figure 3-2. Public Records within WestlawNext search results

WestlawNoot	> are sarps located		Construction	
	Proposed & Enabled Legis Proposed & Enabled Legis 1000 CORE US with a 11 December of the second 11 December of the second 12 December of the second 13	USSE		
	Arbendon Materials on a Arte robust for a second Control Control of the second of the Teaching of the Control of the second of the Control of the second of the	In Case TED., JANE HORMANN (HOCOMUSS) LANDTED TODO STATE AND	 DOMAN KOMIN CO DYNACO'I PH Net offense The second event of the second decides and second event of the second decides and second events. 	NACY
	Public Recode People (1) Discharges (1) Recode (21)	n Princeling Princeling 		

Figure 3-3. Public Records Categories within WestlawNext search results

Public Records Category Page – Template Search

1. To conduct a **Template Search**, click the **Public Records** link located within the **Browse** options on your WestlawNext Home page. PeopleMap will process the search against the fields submitted by the user when conducting a Template Search on a Public Records Category page.

Browse			
All Content Fe	ederal Materials State Ma	terials Practice Areas Tools	
Cases		Briefs	Public Records
👉 Key Numb	ers	Trial Court Documents	Dockets
Trial Court Orde	ers	Expert Materials	News
Statutes & Cou	urt Rules	Jury Verdicts & Settlements	Business Law Center
Regulations		Proposed & Enacted Legislation	Company Investigator
Administrative	Decisions & Guidance	Proposed & Adopted Regulations	Sample Agreements
Secondary Sou	irces	Arbitration Materials	Legislative History
Forms			Trial Transcripts & Oral Arguments

Figure 3-4. Public Records link for template search

- 2. The main Public Records Category Page template searches all available People, Businesses, and underlying full-text records through one easy search. Enter the data you wish to utilize for your public records search. You can search by name, social security number, business information, phone number, location, and more. You may also use the Search box at the top to build a query.
- 3. On the right, click **All Public Records Templates** for more focused templates with contentspecific search options.

WestlawNext	Al Content Public Records		1004646527 Folders + History + Alerta Sign Off SEARCH Patricia's Rese (2)
Home 3 Public Records Public Records Use the search fields below or the search People Information	Add to Fevorites		COVERAGE & PERMISSIBLE USES Coverage Datals Update Permissible Uses
First Name	Last Name	Middle Name/Initial	ALL TEMPLATES All Public Records Templates
Social Security Number Last	t 4 digits of SSN (r) Date/Year of Birth Age mm/dd/yyyy or yyyy	e Range	WESTLAW CLASSIC PeopleMap & Public Records :#

Figure 3-5. All Public Records Templates link for template search

	10	04646527 Folders - History - Alerts Sign Off
WestlawNext*		Patricia's Rese (2)
Home & Public Records Public Records Templates Browse all Public Records templates below People Information	Pavorites 🖌 Make this My Start Page	COVERAGE & PERMISSIBLE USES Coverage Details
All People Information Death Records Marriage & Divorce	Phone & E-Mail Political Donon Professional Licoses, Heathcare Sanctions, & NPI Trans Union Records (Non GLB) Voter Registrations	Updale Permissible Uses
Adverse Information		
All Adverse Information Bankruptcy Filings Criminal, Infractions & Arrests Lawsuits	Liens & Judgments Uniform Commercial Code (UCC)	
Assets		
All Assets Real Property		
Business & Employment		
All Business & Employment Records Corporate Records		

Figure 3-6. All Public Records Templates

4. Make any one Category Page your WestlawNext Start Page and mark as many as you like as Favorites that appear on the WestlawNext homepage.

People Information			
First Name	LastName		Middle Name/Initial
Social Security Number	Last 4 digits of SSN ()	Date/Year of Birth Ag mm/dd/yyyy or yyyy	e Range
	n	Contact Info	rmation
Business Informatio			

Figure 3-7. Public Records Category Page search templates

- Enter terms into one or more of the Public Records Category Page search templates (or build a query in the Search box) and select the results to display first – People, Businesses, or Records – by clicking the appropriate radio button.
 - **Note** Selecting a results category is not required and it will go to People by default in the main Public Records template and People Information template. All other more granular templates default to the Content Category of the template in the Records workflow. Easily toggle to the other categories. By selecting a results category, the preference selected will apply the next time you search with that particular template until you change the results category setting.

Go To Results For:	۲
People power	ed by PeopleMap
O Businesses power	ed by Company Investigator
C Records	

Figure 3-8. Select results – People, Businesses, or Records

6. Click Search.

WestlawNext [*]	Q-advanced: NA(G-advanced: NA(Jane /2 Sample-Document)				
Home > Public Records Public Records Use the search fields below or the	S Add to Favorites search box above to build a que	Make this My Start Page				
People Information	Last Name		Middle Name/Initial			
Jane	Sample-Docur	ment				
Social Security Number	Last 4 digits of SSN (2)	r Names Date/Year of Birth A	pe Range			

Figure 3-9. Click Search after entering data into one or more Public Records category search templates or building a query

Permissible Use

A Permissible Use menu window will open the first time entering public records in each WestlawNext session. You are required to confirm or update your permissible use(s) to access public records data or select No Permissible Use, if none exists under federal and state laws governing the data. There are three (3) drop-down boxes for which you will select permissible uses or No Permissible Use. Click the drop-down arrow for each box to choose the appropriate selection.

Note Permissible Use selections are valid for the session in which you are working but may be changed at any time by clicking the **Update Permissible Uses** links found on the Public Records Category and Results pages.

Set as Default checkboxes appear to the right of each permissible use menu. To maintain your permissible use settings as default settings in subsequent research sessions, click the Set as Default box(es) before clicking Next. Permissible Use defaults last for 6 months. If you set a Permissible Use default setting, changing the value is only good for the session in which you are working unless you also select the corresponding Set as Default checkbox. If the checkbox is not selected, the prior selection will remain as the default.

The Permissible Use categories include:

- 1. GLB Use of this data is limited by the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (GLB) and may only be used for specific non-FCRA (Fair Credit Reporting Act) purposes. It governs credit-header-type data, which is the identifying information that accompanies consumers' credit reports name, name variations, address, former addresses, telephone number (including unlisted numbers, if known), date of birth (usually limited to month and/or year), and Social Security Number.
- 2. DPPA Use of this data is limited by the Driver's Privacy Protection Act (DPPA) and state law. It governs drivers' license and motor vehicle-type data.
- 3. VOTERS Use of this data is limited by state law privacy restrictions. It governs voter data.

Permissible Use		×
Some content requires permissible use to access the data. Please confirm or update your permissible use or select No Permissible Use if none exists.		More Permissible Use Help
GLB		
Use of this data is limited by the Gramm-Leach-Billey Act (GLB) and can only be used for speci	ific non-FCRA (Fair Credit F	Reporting Act purposes).
NO PERMISSIBLE USE.	•	Set as default
DPPA		
Use of this data is limited by the Driver's Privacy Protection Act (DPPA) and state law.		
NO PERMISSIBLE USE.		📃 Set as defaul
VOTERS		
VOTERS. Use of the data is limited by state law privacy restrictions.		
VOTERS Use of the data is limited by state law privacy restrictions. NO PERMISSIBLE USE.		E Set as default
VOTERS Use of the data is limited by state law privacy restrictions. NO PERNISSIBLE USE Please acknowledge your permissible use for accessing information in VOTERS-ALL.	•	📄 Set as default
VOTERS Use of the data is limited by state law privacy restrictions. NO PERMISSIBLE USE. Please acknowledge your permissible use for accessing information in VOTERS-ALL. NO PERMISSIBLE USE.	• port" as such te	Set as default m is defined in the federal Fair Credit
VOTERS Use of the data is limited by state law privacy restrictions. NO PERINTSUBLE USE. Please acknowledge your permissible use for accessing information in VOTERS-ALL. NO PERINTSUBLE USE. Use in connection with an election-related purpose.	port" as such ter nduct a further i nt or for any ofh	Set as default m is defined in the federal Fair Credit westigation. However, the data provided e runcose authorized under the FCRA.

Figure 3-10. Select Permissible Use or No Permissible Use/Set Default Permissible Uses

- 4. After selecting your permissible uses, click Next to run your search and view the results.
 - Note If you previously selected the checkbox to save your WestlawNext password on the WestlawNext OnePass Sign In page, you will be directed to re-authenticate your password before obtaining access to public records. Enter your password and click Sign In. This additional security check protects users and public records data by preventing someone else from signing in and accessing public records data without the user's password credentials.



5. After re-authenticating your password, your Public Records search results will display. Public records are automatically broken out by People, Businesses, and Records categories (with counts). The user may navigate to the other categories to find additional relevant data without the need to craft another search.

WestlawNext^{*} q-advanced: NAME(jane) & NA(sample-document) VIEW People (1) People Businesses 1.1 Update Perm Sort by: Relevance Records 39 Select all items No items selected 1. MS JANE SAMPLE-DOCUMENT NARROW: 100 219-09-XXX 05/XX/1979 01/03/2009 SSN: DOB: DOD: Select Multiple Filters Location 610 OPPERMAN DR, SAINT PAUL, MN 55123-1340 | DAKOTA COUNTY Address: + T State Reported 07/01/2009 - 07/01/2009 611 OPPERMAN DR, SAINT PAUL, MN 55123-1341 | DAKOTA COUNTY Year of Birth ed 01/01/20 08-01/01/2 1950s 1234 SAMPLE COUNTER BLVD, CHICAGO, IL 60606 | COOK COUNTY, USA AKAs: JOHN SAMPLE-DOCUMEN JIM SAMPLE-DOCUMENT Email With Email

Figure 3-12. Public Records search result categorized by People, Businesses, and Records with counts

- **Note** Category counts and actual counts on the result lists may differ at times. Differences may be due to: (a) initial counts being approximations; (b) permissible use selections may modify the amount of content displayed; or (c) when additional potentially relevant results are folded into the result list, including people who have close household or business associations with the subjects directly matching the query. Added results are always ranked below the direct search hits.
- **Note** If at any time you need to modify your Permissible Use(s), click on **Update Permissible Uses** found on the right side of the all Public Records templates page, or in the upper right corner of your search results.

the search fields below or the s	earch box above to build a query. (1)	COVERAGE & PERMISSIBLE USE
People Information		Coverage Details
FirstName	Last Name Middle Name/Initial	Update Permissible Uses
Jane	Sample-Document	ALL TEMPLATES
	Include Similar Names	All Public Records Templates
Social Security Number	Last 4 digits of SSN (1) Date/Year of Birth Age Range	WESTLAW CLASSIC
		Public Records (Classic) /8

Figure 3-13. Update Permissible Uses on Public Records Template page

VIEW: People	«	Back to Public Records People (1)				
Businesses	1	1.1	Sort	by: Relevance		Update Permissible Uses
Records	39	Select all items No	items selected			
NARROW: Select Multiple Filters		1. MS JANE SSN: DOB: DOD:	SAMPLE-DOCUMENT 219-09-XXXXX 05/XX/1979 01/03/2009			
Location * State	3	Address:	01/03/2003 610 OPPERMAN DR, SAINT PAUL, MN 55123 Reported 07/01/2009 - 07/01/2009	-1340 DAKOTA COUN	тү	
Year of Birth	9	AKAs:	811 OPPERMAN DR, SAINT PAUL, MN 55123 Reported 01/01/2008 - 01/01/2008 1234 SAIPLE COUNTER BLVD, CHICAGO, I JOHN SAMPLE-DOCLIMENT	-1341 DAKOTA COUNT L 60606 COOK COUNT	TY, USA	
Email	4		JIM SAMPLE-DOCUMENT JILL SAMPLE-DOCUMENT			

Figure 3-14. Update Permissible Uses on People Results page

4 PeopleMap Results

Overview

The People Results list is powered by PeopleMap on WestlawNext, the next generation in comprehensive public records research on people and their connections to other people, businesses, assets, adverse information and employment information. Find your subject and access reports, web analytics, graphical displays, and mapping features.

People Results

After conducting a search, you will navigate to People Results, a list of individuals that may be the subject of your search.

VIEW:	Back to Public Records		presented by PeopleMap		
People 1	People (1)				
Businesses 1	1-1	Sort by: Update Permissibl	eUses = • 🖂 •		
Records 39		Relevance			
	Select all items No i	tems selected			
NARROW:	📰 1. MS JANE	SAMPLE-DOCUMENT			
Apply Filters Cancel	SSN: DOB:	999-99-XXXX 05/XX/1957	Create Report		
Location	DOD:	01/03/2009			
* 🛄 State 1	Address:	Address: 810 OPPERMAN DR, SANT PAUL, MN 55123-1340 DAKOTA COUNTY			
Year of Birth		611 OPPERMAN DR, SAINT PAUL, MN 55123-1341 DAKOTA COUNTY			
· 1950s		Reported 01/01/2008 - 01/01/2008 1234 SAMPLE COUNTER BLVD. CHICAGO. L 60606 I COOK COUNTY, USA			
Email	AKAs:	JOHN SAMPLE-DOCUMENT			
With Email		JIM SAMPLE-DOCUMENT JILL SAMPLE-DOCUMENT			
License Type Select	- Less				
Apply Filters Cancel		20 per page 👻			

Figure 4-1. People Results and tools

Update

The Update button runs a real-time search in the Experian Credit Header file, providing an easy way to instantly view new and updated information for new addresses, phone numbers, dates of birth, name changes, and social security numbers associated to the subject. The same Update information is available in the PeopleMap Premier report, described below, but often the Update feature is a quick way to find out if there is a new address or better phone number contact info when there is no need for a report.

Note Users must have access to Experian Credit Header data and have a GLB permissible use to interact with the Update feature and data.

The People Results page includes tools to filter results, sort results, deliver/download results, records and reports, access full person records, and create online PeopleMap Reports. The People Results tools include the following:

FILTER (NARROW) PEOPLE RESULTS

People Results Filtering allows you to efficiently narrow your results and locate the correct subject. Filtering options display based on the result list items:

- Location: State, City, and County filters
- Year of birth: drill down to specific decades and years of birth
- Phone number: filter to only those subjects with a phone number
- Email: filter to only those subjects with an email address

- Business/Employment: filter to only those subjects with business and/or employment information
- Household information: filter by multi-person household
- License type: filter by one or more license types (e.g., professional license, firearms, etc.)

Filter by Location

Based upon availability of Public Records Results data, you can filter by state, county, and/or city. The Location count is listed to the right of the State checkbox and its plus sign. To filter by Location:

- 1. Click the **+ (plus sign)** next to the State checkbox to expand the list of states contained in your People Results data. The expanded list contains records counts for each available state.
- 2. If County or City data is available, plus signs are available to expand City or County data. Counts are also listed for available County and City data.
- 3. Click the **checkboxes** next to states, counties, and/or cities to select the detail of filtering you wish to apply to Location data.
 - **Note** Clicking a checkbox next to a specific state, will ensure that all data specific to that state appears in your filtered results. If you want to filter more narrowly, click checkboxes next to particular Counties or Cities rather than State checkboxes.
- If Location filters are the only filters you wish to apply to your People Results list, click Apply Filters. The filter(s) will be applied to update your People Results list and provide you with a narrowed set of results.
 - **Note** You can set other filter options (e.g., year of birth, license type) before clicking Apply Filters to narrow your results even further.

Filter by Year of Birth

- 1. Click the checkbox next to one or more decades, or click the + to view and select individual birth years you wish to use in filtering your People Results. A results count is listed to the right of each decade and Year of Birth available in your People Results data.
- 2. Click **Apply Filters** or select additional filtering options before clicking Apply Filters. The filter(s) applied will update your People Results data to provide a narrowed set of results.

Filter by Phone Number - Email - Business/Employment - Household Information

- Click the checkbox(es) next to Phone Number, Email, Business/Employment, and/or Household Information to filter your People Results data to results with (a) phone number/s available;
 (b) email address(es) available; (c) business/employment information available; and/or
 (d) multi-person households. Results counts are listed to the right of each filter option.
- 2. Click **Apply Filters** or select additional filtering options before clicking Apply Filters. The filter(s) applied will update your People Results data to provide a narrowed set of results.

Filter by License Type

- 1. Click the **Select** link to the right of License Type, which opens a window containing a list of License Types available within your People Results list.
 - **Note** A Search box exists at the top of the License Type window into which you can begin typing characters to locate a particular license (the Search box is helpful when your People Results data produces a large number of license types).

2. Click the checkbox(es) next to the particular licenses by which you wish to filter your People Results data and click **Continue** to return to your Filter Options.

License Type	X
Q Enter a License Type	
LICENSED PRACTICAL NURSE (1)	
REGISTERED NURSE (1)	
0 items selected	

Figure 4-2. Filter by license type

3. Click **Apply Filters** or select additional filtering options before clicking Apply Filters. The filter(s) applied will update your People Results data to provide a narrowed set of results.

The Filtering feature allows you to significantly narrow your People Results data but also can be undone should you wish to return to your original People Results. To reverse your filters, click the **Undo Filters** button. The filters will be reversed and your original People Results data will be restored. You may also de-select checkboxes individually while leaving others selected and click **Apply Filters**.

SORT PEOPLE RESULTS

People Results may be sorted by using the Sort By drop-down box located above the results list. Results may be sorted by **Relevance**, **Last Name**, **Year of Birth**, **City**, and **State**. Relevance is the default sort option by which People Results are automatically sorted and brings the most pertinent results to the top of the list.

To sort your People Results list using a ranking option, other than Relevance, click the **Sort by** dropdown arrow and select the ranking option to sort your People Results. After you select a ranking option, the results list will automatically be re-sorted based upon the option selected.

VIEW:	~	Back to Public Records People (1)		powered by PeopleMap
Businesses	1	14	Sort by:	Update Permissible Uses = + 🖂 +
Records	39		Relevance	
NARROW: Apply Filters Cancel		Select al items No items selected 1. MS JANE SAMPLE-DOCUMENT SSI: 996-90-X00X DOB: 05/02/1957	Helevance Last Name Year of Birth City State	Create Report
Location The State Year of Birth	1	D00: 01/03/2009 01/03/2003 Address: 610 OPPERMAN DR, SANT PAUL Reported 07/01/2009 - 07/01/200 611 OPPERMAN DR, SAINT PAUL	, NN 55123-1340 DAKOTA COUNTY 19 . NN 55123-1341 DAKOTA COUNTY	

Figure 4-3. Sort People Results – default sort is by Relevance

SHOW RESULTS

Up to twenty (20) individual results, if available, will show per page. You can elect to show more individual results per page by clicking the **drop-down arrow in the per page box** to show 50 or 100 records per page. The box is located below your People Results list.

VIEW:	~~	Back to Public Records	powered by PeopleMap	
People	1	r copie (i)		
Businesses	1	1-1 Sort by: Relevance 👻	Update Permissible Uses 🛛 = 👻 🖛 🖛	
Records	39	Select all items No tems selected		
Apply Filters Cancel		1. MS JANE SAMPLE-DOCUMENT SSR: 999-99-000X DOB: 050X1957 DOD: 01032009	Create Report	
Location *	1	0103/2003 Address: 610 OPFERMAN DB, SANT PAUL, MN 55123-1340 DAKOTA COUNTY Reported 11/13/2000 - 07/01/2009		
Year of Birth # 1950s	1	811 OPPERIMAN DR, SAMT PAUL, INI 5522-1541 (DAKOTA COUNTY Reported 01072008 - 01072008 40 FIGHKILL AVE, 12345, AK 12345		
Email		JUNI SAIRLE-DOCUMENT JILI SAIRLE-DOCUMENT - Less		
License Type	Select	2.0999000 D		
Apply Filters Cancel Search other sources: News		20 per page • 30 per page 50 per page 100 per page		

Figure 4-4. Show 20, 50 or 100 People Results per page

VIEW DETAILS

The default People Results list view shows a summary of basic information for each individual record in the list, including Social Security Number, Date of Birth, Date of Death, Address, and AKAs – this is the More Detail view. To show Less Detail in the results list, click the Less Detail/More Detail icon in the upper right corner of the results list and click Less Detail.

VIEW: People	1	People (1)		powered by PeopleMap
Businesses	1	1-1	Sort by:	Undate Permissible Uses = +
Records	39		Relevance	Less Detail
NARROW: Apply Filters Cancel		Select all ferms 1 ferm selected cler 1. MS JANE SAMPLE- SSN: 999-99- DOB: 05/00/11	r selected OCUMENT 000X 157	Create Report
Location	1	DOD: 01/03/20 01/03/20 Address: 610 OPF Reporte	09 03 ERMAN DR, SAINT PAUL, MN 55123-1340 DAKOTA COUNTY 1/07/01/2009 - 07/01/2009	

Figure 4-5. Select People Results records – Show Less or More Detail

Note Below the name of each individual in the results list is a Less link that can be used to show Less Detail for an individual record. Click **Less** to view fewer details related to a particular record.

SELECT AND DELIVER PEOPLE RESULTS

People Results can be printed, emailed or downloaded. To deliver People Results for print, email or download, select one or more records. Click a **checkbox** next to an individual record to select a record, click **multiple checkboxes** next to multiple records to select multiple records, or click the **Select All Items** box located to the left and above the People Results list to select all records contained in the list. Next, select a Deliver Option.

Click the **Delivery Options drop-down arrow** to select a delivery option: **Email**, **Print**, or **Download**. Each Delivery Option allows you to deliver the People Results records (or selected records) in a list format, or choose to deliver up to five PeopleMap Reports directly from the People Results List. After selecting a Delivery Option, an option window will display with options to deliver records or reports and set Layouts & Limits.

VIEW:	40	Back to Public Records		powered by PeopleMap
People	1	Feople (1)		
Businesses	1	1-1	Sort by:	Update Permissible Uses 🔤 👻 📼 🍝
Records	39		Relevance 👻	🖌 🖂 Email
NAPPOW		Select all items 1 item selected clea	ir selected	👄 Print
Apply Filters Cancel		I. MS JANE SAMPLE-D SSN: 999-99-X DOB: 05/00/19	00CUMENT 000X 157	Download
Eccation	1	DOD: 01/03/20 01/03/20 Address: 610.0PP	09 03 FRMAN DR. SAINT PAUL, MN 55123-1340 I DAKOTA COUNTY	

Figure 4-6. Select a Delivery Option

- The Email PeopleMap Report/Record window includes two tabs: Recipients & Layout and Limits.
 - Recipients: Your email address will auto-fill into the To box; additional email addresses can be entered to which you can send records or reports. The Subject box is auto-filled but can be changed. Enter optional notes into the Email Note box. Select Person Record(s) or PeopleMap Report(s) by clicking the appropriate radio button. Choose the format Microsoft Word, RTF, PDF or WordPerfect in which you wish to email the selected records or reports by clicking the down arrow in the Format box.
 - Layout and Limits: To select the font color for links, click the drop-down arrow in the Links box. Choose a Font Size by clicking the drop-down arrow in the Font Size box. Click the Underline box to ensure that links will be underlined. To include an Expanded Margin for Notes or a Cover Page, check the appropriate box.

After entering all information and setting layouts & limits, click the **Email** button to deliver your records or reports via email. Click **Cancel** to exit the Email PeopleMap Report/Record window.

Recipients Layout and Limits	
To treparate multiple email addresses with a comma or semicoton) patricia@thomsonreuters.com Subject	What to Deliver Image: Second (s) Image: Second (s) Image: Second (s) Image: Second (s)
WestlawNext - MS JANE SAMPLE-DOCUMENT	Format
Email Note	Microsoft Word
optional notes	
optional notes	

Figure 4-7. Email PeopleMap Report/Record(s)

- The Print PeopleMap Report/Record window includes two tabs: The Basics & Layouts and Limits.
 - **The Basics:** Select Person Record(s) or PeopleMap Report(s) by clicking the appropriate radio button.
 - Layout and Limits: Set Layouts and Limits as described above.

After selecting records or reports and setting layouts & limits, click the **Print** button to print the selected records or reports. Click **Cancel** to exit the Print PeopleMap Report/Record window.

Print People	Map Report/Record	×
The Basics	Layout and Limits	
What to Deliv	er	
Person	Record(s) PeopleMap Report(s)	
4		
	Print Cancel	

Figure 4-8. Print PeopleMap Report/Record(s)

- The Download PeopleMap Report/Record window includes two tabs: The Basics and Layout and Limits.
 - The Basics: Select Person Record(s) or PeopleMap Report(s) by clicking the appropriate radio button. Select a format Microsoft Word, PDF, RTF, or WordPerfect by clicking the Format box drop-down arrow.
 - Layout and Limits: Set Layouts and Limits as described above.

After selecting records or reports and setting layouts & limits, click the **Download** button to download records or reports. Click **Cancel** to exit the Download PeopleMap Report/Record window.

Download P	eopleMap Report/Record	×
The Basics	Layout and Limits	
What to Deliv	er Record(s) 🔯 O PeopleNap Report(s)	
moreedit Word	Download Cancel	

Figure 4-9. Download PeopleMap Report/Record(s)

UPDATE PERMISSIBLE USES

The Update Permissible Uses allows you to return to the Permissible Uses window to modify your permissible uses. See Section 3 "Permissible Use" on page 7 for information and instructions regarding Permissible Uses.

VIEW: People	•••	Back to Public Records People (1)		powered by PeopleMap
Businesses Records	1 39	1 - 1 V Select all items 1 item selected clear selected	Sort by: Relevance 👻	Update Permissible Uses = • 🖂 •
NARROW: Apply Filters Cancel		✓ 1. MS JANE SAMPLE-DOCUMENT SSN: 998-99-3000X DOB: 05/00/1957 ODD: 01/03/2079		Create Report

Figure 4-10. Update Permissible Uses link

ACCESS PERSON RECORD

To dive deeper into an individual people record, click a person's name in the People Results list to navigate to the person record. The full person record contains additional data and features that may be viewed and/or added to a PeopleMap report. Tools include Graphical Display, Address Map, Web Analytics, and Report.

CREATE REPORT

Each individual People record in the People Results list includes a Create Report button to the right of the record summary. Click **Create Report** to create an online PeopleMap Report for the subject of interest. It is often beneficial to first click the person name and add additional relevant information to the report including web analytics results, map and graphical displays.

See below for further information regarding full person records and features "Section 7, PeopleMap Reports" on page 36.

VIEW		Deeple (4)		powered by PeopleMap
People	1	reuple (1)		
Businesses	1	1-1	Sort by: Relevance +	Undate Permissible Uses = - 🖂 -
Records	39	Select all items No	tems selected	
NARROW:		1. MS JAN	SAMPLE-DOCUMENT	
Apply Filters Cancel		DOB: DOD:	999-99-XOOX 05/0X/1957 01/03/2009	Create Report
Location			01/03/2003	
+ C State	1	Address:	610 OPPERMAN DR, SAINT PAUL, MN 55123-1340 DAKOTA COUNTY Reported 11/13/2000 - 07/01/2009	
Year of Birth			611 OPPERMAN DR, SAINT RAUL, MN 55123-1341 DAKOTA COUNTY	
* 🛅 1950s	1		40 FISHKILL AVE, 12345, AK 12345	
Email		AKAs:	JOHN SAMPLE-DOCUMENT	
🛅 With Email	1		JILL SAMPLE-DOCUMENT	
		- Less		
License Type	Select			

Figure 4-11. Click Person Name to access full record / Click Create Report for an online PeopleMap Report

People Results - Person Record

Once you have identified the subject of interest, click the person's name to view a more comprehensive Person Record. You can also immediately create a report by clicking **Create Report**.

A Person Record is a more robust view of the data seen on the People Results list, which aggregates and de-duplicates subject information from 20+ high-quality content sources. The comprehensive Person Record is the launching point for deeper research on a subject through dynamic Graphical Displays that show connections, Address (Google) Maps, Web Analytics, and PeopleMap Reports. These features are available via tabs along the top of the Person Record. The address list is ordered in reverse chronological order by reported dates and lists the contributing sources of the address.

Record Graphical Display Address Map Web Analytics Report +	PeopleM
Return to List	A 🖂 - ()
MS JANE SAMPLE-DOCUMENT 610 OPPERMAN DR. SAINT PAUL, MN 55123-1340 DAKOTA County	Create Report
Concernance of the second seco	SSN: 999-99-XXXX AKAs: JOHN SAMPLE-DOC DOB: Gender: F JIM SAMPLE-DOCUM JILL SAMPLE-DOCU MR JOHNANDLANE S
eagon of the second sec	DOD: 01/03/2009 01/03/2003 Phone Numbers: 651 907 6543
Boogle Apple Vallay Boogle Temped U.S. Peters and Second Laboration Second Seco	FIGH Runners. 001-001-0040
OTO OFFERMAN DR, SAINT FAOL, MIN SS123-134C+	
Known Addresses:	8
610 OPPERMAN DR, SAINT PAUL, MN 55123-1340 DAKO	DTA First Reported 11/13/2000 Last Reported 07/01/2009
County	By People Find 11/13/2000 - 07/01/2009
	By Address Historical
611 OPPERMAN DR, SAINT PAUL, MN 55123-1341 DAKO	OTA First Reported 01/01/2008 Last Reported 01/01/2008
County	Do Deserte Lieuxekald 04/04/2000

Figure 4-12. Full Person Record with access to Graphical Display, Address Map, Web Analytics, and Reports

Note After clicking into a Person Record, you can click **Return to List** to go back to the People Results List.

The Person Records page includes certain tools and features by which you can manipulate the record data and more deeply analyze the available data.

PERSON RECORD TOOLS

Display Options

This tool allows you to modify the appearance of text as displayed for your Person Record, including size, font type, and margin width. Click **Display Options**, modify text size, font type, and margin width, view the modifications via the Preview box, and click **Save**, or click **Cancel** to exit Display Options.

Display Options		3
Size Small Medium Extra Large Restore Default Options	Font Arial Verdana Georgia Times New Roman	Width Wide G. Normal Narrow
Preview Hence his presenc personally binding	e within the territorial jurisdiction of cour him. Pennoyer v. Neff, 95 U.S. 714, 733,	t was prerequisite to its rendition of a judgment 24 L.Ed. 565.
An 'estimate of the 'home' or principal 45 F.2d 141.	inconveniences' which would result to th place of business is relevant in this con	e <mark>corporation</mark> from a trial away from its nection. Hutchinson v Chase & Gilbert, supra,
	Save	Cancel

Figure 4-13. Person Record – Display Options

Note If you previously modified Display Options and wish to restore Default Options, click the **Restore Default Options** link within the Display Options window.

Delivery Options

Person Records can be printed, or, emailed or downloaded in available formats, including Word, PDF, RTF, or WordPerfect. The print, email and download tools operate in the same manner as they operate for delivering the People Results List. See "Delivery Options" on page 35 for more detailed information.

Fullscreen Mode

This tool allows you to view the person record in full screen mode on your computer. Click the **Fullscreen Mode** button to view your results on your full computer screen.

IS J	IANE SAMPLE-DOCUMENT		
Record	Graphical Display Address Map	Web Analytics Report *	PeopleMap
+ Return	n to List		jai 👻 🖬 🗛
M 61	IS JANE SAMPLE-DOC	UMENT 5123-1340 DAKOTA County	Create Report

Figure 4-14. Person Record – Fullscreen Mode button

Create Report

Click the **Create Report** button to create a report containing the comprehensive person record data. See "Section 7, PeopleMap Reports" on page 36 for specific Person Record Report details.

Graphical Display

Two graphical displays are available to help you analyze public records associated with the subject and the subject's connections to possible adverse information, assets, business and employment information, and connections to other people and related parties. Click the **Graphical Display** tab to access the tool.

JANE	SAMPLE-DOCU	MENT										
Record	Graphical Display	Address Map	Web Analytics	Report -								PeopleMap
+ Return t	to List				0	Add to Report	10	-4	23	\$	▦	× e
JANE 610 C SAN	E SAMPLE-DOCUMENT OPPERMAN DR IT PAUL, MN 55123-1340 Create Report	ec								Θ		(
🗉 🔽 Possi	ible Adverse Informat	ion E			SAMPLE-DOCUMENT DENT							
Image: Contract of the second seco	Arrest Record	99%			20							
🗹 🍕	Bankruptcy Record	99%										
Z 4	Criminal & Infraction Record	99%										
V	Healthcare Sanction	99%			A JANE SAMPLE-DOCUMENT							
· ·	Lien & Judgment (2)	100 C										
	OFAC	99%										
	UCC Record											
- V Possi	ible Asset Information											
	Real Property Foreclosure Record	97%										
V -	Watercraft Record	99%							- Т			
Emple	ible Business & oyment										7	
V 1	Business Profile	99%							- 4			
	DMI	99%							- 1			-
	Executive Affiliation											
	Frankin Der De	-							-			

Figure 4-15. Person Record - Graphical Display tab / Entity-to-Entity Display (Default Display)

Note Browser plugins are NOT required to use the interactive graphical displays.

ENTITY-TO-ENTITY GRAPHICAL DISPLAY (DEFAULT VIEW)

This feature allows you to visually research people and their connections to possible adverse information, assets, business, and employment information, and connections to other people and related parties. This default view is accessed by clicking the **Graphical Display** tab in your Person Record (Figure 31).

The subject name is listed at the top left together with the Create Report button and filters for Possible Adverse Information, Possible Asset Information, Possible Business & Employment, Possible People Information, and Related Parties. The percentages listed next to the records in the filter list indicate the likelihood that the information is related to your subject.

- The checkboxes next to the available record categories allow you to filter certain records. Some filters are not selected (displayed) by default, including Relatives, Shared Phone Number, and Duplicate Social Security Number. To include or exclude certain records and related parties, click the checkbox(es) next to the records you wish to exclude or click the category name to exclude an entire category (e.g., Docket) you either add a checkmark to include records or remove a checkmark to exclude records.
 - **Note** Where some but not all records in a category are selected, you will see a square instead of a check in the checkbox.
 - **Note** The graphics displayed to the right are dynamic and are modified based upon categories/records included or excluded.
- The plus signs next to the available record categories allow you to expand record details to further narrow information you wish to research and/or exclude/include.
- All categories are enabled by default with checkboxes click the box next to a category to exclude certain information.

- The right side of the Entity-to-Entity Graphical Display also lists the subject name but uses graphics to visually display relationships between the subject and the records/record categories set forth in the left column (Possible Adverse Information, Possible Asset Information, Possible Business & Employment, Possible People Information, and Related Parties).
- If you float your cursor over a record, a window opens showing the full record title. If you click on a record icon located along the line connecting the subject and related information, a window opens showing further record detail. Click again to view the full-text
- Continue to research graphically by expanding out a related person or business which will pivot the display to that second entity. You may continue to expand out the connections which may expose additional connections between entities. Click **Search** on a business entity to run a Company Investigator search to pull a full company report and available company family trees.

JANE	E SAMPLE-DOCU	IMENT								
Record	Graphical Display	Address Map	Web Analytics	Report +						PeopleMap
+ Return	to List				0	Add to Report	80 -5	C3 ¢	I	× 0
JAN 610 SAJ	IE SAMPLE-BOCUMENT POPEINANCE NT PAUL, INI S9123-1340 Create Report Bible Adverse Informat Pranse Record Genary Record Bekord Heath & Sudgment (2) Grace Sancio Grace Sancio Grace Sancio Grace Sancio	kon E 99% 99% 99%			SAMPLE-DOCUMENT DENT			e		[

Figure 4-16. Entity-to-Entity Display – View Record Title

MS JANE SAMPLE-D	OCUMENT			
Record Graphical Display	Address Map	Web Analytics	Report +	PeopleMap
A Return to List				🥹 Add to Report 🔹 🕵 👫 🔲 🐼 🖶
JANE SAMPLE-DOCUMENT OPERIAN DR SANT PAUL, MN 55123-1340 Create Report	tion E 99%			
Criminal & Infraction Record Healthcare Sanction Grave Sa	99% 99% 99%			Filing Tipe: FINANCING STATEMENT Debtor: BANK U.S. Role: DEBTOR Full hert

Figure 4-17. Entity-to-Entity Display – View Record Related Records

ENTITY-TO-DOCUMENT GRAPHICAL DISPLAY

To access the Entity-to-Document Graphical Display, click the **Entity-to-Document Display** button on the Graphical Display toolbar.

Note The Entity-to-Entity Graphical Display button is located immediately to the right of the Entity-to-Document Graphical Display button; you can easily toggle between the Entity-to-Entity Graphical Display and Entity-to-Document display by clicking on either button. When accessing the graphical display for subsequent subjects, you will be presented with the graphical display format that you last used.

MS J	ANE SAMPLE-DO	CUME	NT					
Record	Graphical Display	Address	Мар	Web Analytics	Report +			PeopleM
+ Return	to List					😡 Add to Report	80 -41 00	¢ 🎟 🖂 🤞
Poss	ible Adverse Informati Arrest Record Bankruptcy Record Criminal & Infraction Record Healthcare Sanction Lien & Judgment (2) OFAC UCC Record	on 99% 99% 99% 99% 99%				Possible Adverse Information Arrest Record Bankruptcy Record Criminal & Infractio Lien & Judgment Lien & Judgment		<u> </u>
e Poss	ible Asset Information Real Property Foreclosure Record ible Business & oyment Business Profile DMI	97% 99% 99%	*	ANE SAMPLE-	DOCUMENT	UCC Record Possible Business & Employment Business Profile Executive Affiliatio	SAMPLE-DOCU	MENT DENT
	Executive Affliation Executive Profile Professional License Stock (2) Work Affliation ible People Information Address Historical (2) Conceal & Cerry Wearone Permt	99% 97% 99% n				Executive Profile Professional License Stock Possible People Information Address Historical		\rightarrow

Figure 4-18. Entity-to-Document Display

After clicking the Entity-to-Document Graphical Display button, the visual focuses on public records associated with the subject. This dynamic display is useful for visualizing a person's public records footprint, an easy-to-view display highlighting Possible Adverse, Asset, Business & Employment, People Information, and Related businesses and Parties. The user may also expand out additional people and businesses in a linear display.

• Floating your cursor over a record in the Entity-to-Document Display highlights the lines that demonstrate the relationship(s) between the subject and record, as well as Related Parties, if any.

MS JA	NE SAMPLE-D	OCUME	T				_	_	_	_	
Record	Graphical Display	Address I	lap Web Analy	tics Report •						Peopl	еМар
Seturn t	o List				Add to Report	80 -4	23	¢	▦	00	Ð
Poss Poss Poss Poss Emple	bible Adverse Informati Arrest Record Deninuptory Record Penning & Infraction Record Heathcare Sanction Lion & Judgment (2) OFAC UCC Record Did Asset Information Real Property Foreclosure Record Watercraft Record Watercraft Record Distances & Soyment Distances Profile Distances Profile Distances Profile	Jon • 99% • 99% • 99% • 99% • 99% • 99% • 99% • 99% • 99% • 99% • 99% • 99% • 99% • 99% • 99% • 99% •	JANE SAM	PLE-DOCUMENT	Possible Adverse Information Arrest Record Bankruptcy Record Criminal & Infractio Lien & Judgment UCC Record Possible Business & Employment Business Profile Executive Affiliatio Executive Affiliatio Executive Refiliatio Executive Refiliatio	- Sample-	DOCUM		DENT.	• (***** 	•

Figure 4-19. Float cursor over Record to highlight relationships between Subject, Record & Related Parties, if any

• Clicking on a record opens a small window that display basic information related to the record. The window also includes a red Delete "x" and a Full Text link. Click on the **red Delete "x"** to close the window. Click on the **Full Text** link to view the full text of the record.

MS JA	NE SAMPLE-DO	CUMENT						
Record	Graphical Display	Address Map	Web Analytics	Report +				PeopleMap
🗢 Return t	o List				e Add to Report	80 -81	E3 Ø	# X &
B Possi	ble Adverse Informati Arrest Record Eankrupty Record Crimal & Infraction Record Heathcare Sanction Lien & Judgment (2) OFAC UCC Record ble Asset Information Real Property Foreclosure Record	on * 99% 99% 99% 99% 99%			Possible Adverse Information]		
e Emplo	Watercraft Record ble Business & byment	99%	JANE SAMPLE-I		Possible Business & Employment Business Profile	SAMPLE-I	DOCUMENT DE	NT

Figure 4-20. Click a Record to display basic information and access Full Text link

Lien/Judgmen COUNTY RECOR	enJudgment Filing: JANE SAMPLE-DOCUMENT, JOHN SAMPLE-DOCUMENT * JUNTY RECORDER								
		Civil Judgment Filing Record							
Filing Informatio	n	Creditor Inform	nation	Ĺ					
Filing Number: SC111999		Creditor:	JOHN SAMPLE-DOCUMENT						
Filing Type:	JUDGMENT	Judgment Information							
Filing Office: Filing County:	COUNTY RECORDER MN RAMSEY	Amount Awarded:	\$1,775.00	2					
Debtor Informati	ion	Status: Status Date:	MODIFIED 07/21/2001						
Debtor:	JANE SAMPLE-DOCUMENT	Order Documents							
Debtor:	SANT PAUL, MN JANE SAMPLE-DOCUMENT 240 SUMMIT AVE SANT PAUL, MN	CAUN solutions of the contract							

Figure 4-21. Full text of Record after clicking on Full Text link

GRAPHICAL DISPLAY TOOLBAR/TOOLS

The Graphical Display tab contains a toolbar allowing you to toggle easily between the Entity-to-Entity and Entity-to-Document Graphical Displays. Other features include: Help, Add to Report, Center, Redraw, Grid, Fullscreen Mode, and Print. A tool allowing you to change the size of the Graphical Display exists directly below the Graphical Display toolbar. Additional tools available include Return to List and Create Report buttons and a Graphical Display Navigation tool.

Of particular interest is the ability to use Add to Report to insert important visuals and connections between entities directly into the PeopleMap Report Attachments section.

The Graphical Display toolbar features are as follows:





The lower right corner of the Graphical Display contains a Navigation tool box that can be used to quickly and easily move around your display. It contains a smaller, blue-outlined box. The portion of the larger Graphical Display that appears within the smaller blue box is the portion of the Graphical Display that you are currently viewing. You can navigate to other portions of the larger

Graphical Display by floating your cursor over the box in the lower right corner, which will display a Navigation icon. Click on the **Navigation icon**, hold your mouse button down and move your mouse to move the small blue box into position on the Graphical Display that you wish to view via the larger Graphical Display viewer.

Address Map

Click on Address Map to display all addresses linked to a subject in reverse chronological order, together with a map pinpointing the addresses. Map images are provided by Google Maps and are as current as images available by searching directly with Google Maps.



Figure 4-22. Address Map

A scroll bar to the right of the addresses list allows you to easily view the addresses linked to the subject – review a person's locations over time and pinpoint specific addresses. Floating your cursor over an address in the list will cause its pushpin to jump to quickly. Clicking an address in the list or a **pushpin** on the map will open an address window from which you can zoom in on the selected address by clicking **Zoom Here**.



Figure 4-23. Click an address or map pushpin and Zoom Here

After clicking Zoom Here, the map will zoom to the selected address. Additional navigation and views can be manipulated via the +/- zoom options, map/satellite toggle, and rotate map features. Drag the person icon into the map location to switch the view to a Street View.



Figure 4-24. Zoomed address map with additional navigation options

ADDRESS MAP TOOLBAR/TOOLS

Additional Address Map tools include the following:



- Return to List re-directs you to the initial Public Records Results List from the Person Record you are viewing.
- Add to Report allows you to add a snapshot of the map into the PeopleMap Report for the subject. Click Add to Report to save the map snapshot; a message will confirm the map has been successfully added to your report. The map snapshot will be added into the Attachment section of the PeopleMap report by default. Up to 100 maps may be added to a single report.
- Fullscreen Mode allows you view a full screen version of the map.
- Print opens a window displaying a print preview of the map. Click Print or Cancel.

Web Analytics

This feature allows you to research a person's social media footprint and web results through categorized and filterable deep web search results. Web Analytics offers filtering options of web results and allows you to link out to Social Media and Web pages possibly associated with the subject. Click the **Web Analytics tab** within the PeopleMap workflow to get started.

MS JANE SAMPLE-DO	OCUMENT		
Record Graphical Display	Address Map	Web Analytics Report -	PeopleMap
Seturn to List			Add to Report AA (III)
Apply Filters Cancel	E	Select all items	
Person		Social Media and Web (7)	
BERNARD BASS Betty Jane Halbert BRUCE AVOLIO Emma Jane Wright Heather Meade Persons	1	1. Professional Profile & Networking - Linkedin	
Company Facebook Linkedin MyHeritage	4 3 5	Greater Itomespolis-SI: Paul Area Dentital al Your Local Family Dentity 2. Personal Web Profile - Facebook	
Industry Term	ŧ.		
City Minneapolis Apply Filters Cancel	2	Jane Sampa-document 3. Historical Records - MyHeritage 75 Marriage Records	

Figure 4-25. Web Analytics within Person Record

Filtering Options – An improvement over most web search offerings, Web Analytics Results can be filtered to narrow your research data. Filtering options appear on the left side of the Web Analytics tab and vary based upon your subject's available data but may include Person, Company, Industry Term, City, Phone Numbers, Organization, and risk flags among others. Checkmark a box or boxes next to the records you wish to utilize to narrow your search by clicking them and then click **Apply Filters**. Click **Cancel** to reverse the filtering. If your filter options are set to automatically filter when selecting each checkbox, that will be honored here as well.

Social Media & Web Results – All available social media and web data appears on the right side of the Web Analytics tab. Clicking a particular result navigates directly to the website associated with the result, which opens in a new browser window and pauses your WestlawNext session. This is often a great source to check for photos and other information not found in other public records sources.

Note If a person has marked their Social media profiles such as LinkedIn and Facebook as private in those website settings, it is not accessible through Web Analytics.

WEB ANALYTICS TOOLBAR/TOOLS

Additional Web Analytics tools include the following:



- **Return to List** re-directs you to the initial Public Records Results List from the Person Record you are viewing.
- Add to Report allows you to add some or all of the Social Media & Web Results to the subject PeopleMap Report. Select one or more of the Social Media & Web Results by checking boxes next to individual results or Select All and click Add to Report to add the results into the PeopleMap report. The result list items added to the report are then available in the PeopleMap Report Attachments section when you open it. This feature is often used to bring photos into a report.
- Display Options allows you to modify the appearance of text as displayed for your Social Media & Web records, including size, font type, and margin width. Click Display Options, modify text size, font type, and margin width, view the modifications via the Preview box, and click Save, or click Cancel to exit Display Options.
 - **Note** If you have previously modified Display Options and wish to Restore Default Options, click the **Restore Default Options** link within the Display Options window.

Display Options			×
Size Small Medium	Font ⊚ Arial ⊘ Verdana	Width Vide Normal	
C Large Extra Large	 Georgia Times New Roman 	Narrow	
Restore Default Options			
Preview			
Hence his <mark>preser</mark> personally <mark>bindin</mark>	ce within the territorial jurisdiction of court wa g him. Pennoyer v. Neff, 95 U.S. 714, 733, 24 I	s prerequisite to its rendition of a judgment Ed. 666.	
An 'estimate of th	e inconveniences' which would result to the c	orporation from a trial away from its 'home' or	

Figure 4-26. Web Analytics Display Options Tool

• Fullscreen Mode allows you to view a full screen version of the Web Analytics Results tab.

Report

The Person Record tabs include a Report tab that can be used to view a Report Overview or create a Premier or Basic Report. See "Section 7, PeopleMap Reports" on page 36 for further details.

MS JANE SAMPLE-DOCUM	ENT			
Record Graphical Display Addres	s Map Web i	Analytics Report -		PeopleMa
S Return to List			AA Save Report Template	
Included Excluded	No Data	Person Overview (1)		*
Possible People Information	*			
Person Overview (1)	×	JANE SAMPLE-DOCUMENT 610 OPPERMAN DR SAINT PAUL, MN 55123-1340 DAKOTA County	Les Edina o Steven	elvenand nAreo
Death Records (2)	×	SSN:	444 Herghts	
Date of Birth Summary (1)	×	999-99-XXXX - SSN not issued DOB:	Blooming ton treights Cot	tage ove
SSN Summary (1)	×	05/XX/1957 (Age: 51)	E Burnsville	
Name Variations (5)	×	01/03/2009	Guogle Apple Vall of Rosense Mas Data Terms of Use	Report a map error
Addresses (6)	×		610 OPPERMAN DR. SAINT PAUL, MN 55123-1340	-
Email Addresses (3)	×	Death Records (2)		
Divorce Records (1)	.*	Death	Source	
Conceal & Carry Weapons Permits (1)	8	01/03/2009	Social Security Administration	(N)
	140	01/03/2009 KY RUSSELL County	State Death	(10)

Figure 4-27. Online Person Record Report

5 PeopleMap Reports

Overview

PeopleMap reports quickly pull all of the relevant data together about a subject in a customizable, online report. An online Report Overview is available by clicking on a **Create Report** button. **Premier** and **Basic Reports** options are available; either can be set as your default report option.

Premier Reports contain all available current and historical information about a person, including assets, adverse information, business and employment relationships and licenses, along with the underlying full-text records. Also included are additional report sections for potential household associations, relatives and neighbors.

Basic Reports contain information about a person, including basic summaries of assets, adverse information, business and employment relationships and licenses, along with the underlying full-text records.

Note The first time you create a report, you will navigate to the Report Overview page where you can select a report type – **Premier** or **Basic** – by clicking the appropriate **Create Report** button; your selection will become your default report type until changed by going to the Report Overview page and selecting a different report type.

Westla	wNe	ext Q - Search Public Records		SEARCH advanced
Record Grap	hical Disp	Address Nap Web Analytics	Report - Report Overview PeopleMap Report (Premier) - Default PeopleMap Report (Basic)	Peopletian Deport (Brain)
		Contains all available current and historici including assets, adverse information, bus relationships and licenses, along with all or included are additional report sections for relatives and neighbors.	al information about a person, inness and employment anderlying full-text records. Also potential household associations, Create Report	Contains information about a person, including basic summarise of assets, adverse information, business and employment relationships and licenses, along with the underlying full-text records.

Figure 7-1. PeopleMap report options - Premier or Basic

Online reports are categorized into the following report sections with sub-sections of content within:

- Possible People Information Includes Person Overview, Drivers Licenses, Death Records, Date of Birth Summary, SSN Summary, Name Variations, Addresses, Email Addresses, Marriage Records, Divorce Records, Conceal & Carry Weapons Permits, Hunting & Fishing Licenses, Utility Records, Phone Numbers, Voter Registration, and Political Donors
- **Possible Asset Information** Includes Real Property Tax Records, Real Property Transactions, Real Property Foreclosure Records, Watercraft Records, Aircraft Records, Vehicle Registrations, and Unclaimed Assets
- Possible Adverse Information Includes Risk Flags Analysis, Criminal & Infraction Records, Arrest Records, OFAC, Healthcare Sanctions, Liens& Judgments, Bankruptcy Records, and UCC Records, Lawsuit Records, Dockets
- Possible Business & Employment Includes Professional Licenses, Executive Profile, Executive Affiliations, Work Affiliations, DMI, FEIN, Stock, Business Profile, Healthcare Licenses, National Provider Identities, Executive Bios, Corporate Records & Business Registrations, Busfind US, Busfind Canada, Fictitious Business Names/DBA, and Worldbase

- Full-Text Documents
- **Possible Relatives & Household Members** Includes Household Records, Relatives Analysis, and Other Address Associations
- Possible Neighbors
- Attachments
- Possible Named Parties
- No Documents Found
- Permissible Uses

Creating a Report

Reports may be created directly from your initial Results List or after you have linked in to a comprehensive Person Record.

CREATE REPORT FROM INITIAL RESULTS LIST

To create a subject report directly from your initial Results List, locate the subject for which you wish to create a report and click **Create Report**. Create reports here if you want to bypass other features and do not have a need for web analytics, graphical displays or map attachments. These additional features are accessed by clicking the person name to go to the Person Record.

You may also select up to five subjects on the result list and create all of the reports simultaneously by using the delivery options.

VIEW:	**	Back to Public Records		powered by PeopleMap
People	1	People (1)		
Businesses	1	1-1	Sort by: Relevance -	Undate Permissible Uses = - 🖂 -
Records	39	Select all items No	tems selected	in the second second second second
Apply Filters Cancel		1. MS JAN SSN: DOB: DOD:	E SAMPLE-DOCUMENT 999-99-30000 05000/1957 01002009	Create Report
Location State	ĩ	Address:	01/03/2003 610 OPPERMAN DR, SAINT PAUL, MN 55123-1340 DAKOTA COUNTY Reported 11/13/2000 - 07/01/2009	
Year of Birth # [] 1950s	1		611 OPPERMAN DR, SAINT PAUL, MN 55123-1341 DAKOTA COUNTY Reported 01/01/2008 - 01/01/2008 40 FISHKILL AVE, 12345, AK 12345	
Email	1	AKAs:	JOHN SAMPLE-DOCUMENT JM SAMPLE-DOCUMENT JLL SAMPLE-DOCUMENT	

Figure 7-2. Create report from initial results list

MS JANE SAMPLE-DOCUME	NT	C Report is La	oading
Record Graphical Display Address	Map Web	Analytics Report -	PeopleMa
Return to List			🗚 Save Report Template 📴 🖃 🖃
Included Excluded M	lo Data	Person Overview (1)	•
ossible People Information			
erson Overview (1)	(8) _E	JANE SAMPLE-DOCUMENT 611 OPPERMAN DR SAINT PAUL, MN 55123-1341 DAKOTA County	Haiveatha West St Paul National West and Referation Area
eath Records (2)	×	SSN:	And the second s
ate of Birth Summary (1)	×	999-99-XXX - SSN not issued DOB:	Gloomington Heights Cottage Grove
SN Summary (1)	18	05/XX/1957 (Age: 51)	
ame Variations (5)	×	01/03/2009	GRogic AppleValley Rosend Map Data Terms of Use Report a map error
ddresses (6)	×		610 OPPERMAN DR. SAINT PAUL, MN 55123-1340
ddresses (6) mail Addresses (3)	×	Death Records (2)	610 OPPERMAN DR, SAINT PAUL, MN 55123-1340
ddresses (6) mail Addresses (3) ivorce Records (1)	×	Death Records (2)	610 OPPERMAN DR, SAINT PAUL, MN 55123-1340
ddresses (6) mail Addresses (3) Ivorce Records (1)	x	Death Records (2) Death	610 OPPERMAN DR, SAINT PAUL, MN 55123-1340
Addresses (6) imail Addresses (3) Ilvorce Records (1) ionceal & Carry Weapons Permits (1)	x	Death Records (2) Death 01/03/2009	610 OPPERMAN DR, SAINT PAUL, MN 55123-1340 Source Social Security Administration (#)

Figure 7-3. Online PeopleMap report

ADDITIONAL ACCESS POINTS TO CREATE REPORTS

The Create Report tool is also available after you link in to a Person Record. After linking into a Person Record, you can create a report from the **Report**, **Graphical Display**, and **Report** tabs available in a Person Record.

PEOPLEMAP REPORT OVERVIEW

After creating an online PeopleMap Report, you will see three tabs in the left column of your screen – **Included**, **Excluded**, and **No Data** – each of which lists Content Categories and Records, and a PeopleMap Report summary on the right. The **Included tab** lists Sections & Sub-sections of subject records and data included in the report. The **Excluded tab** lists records and data you excluded from the report. The **No Data** tab lists categories of unavailable records and data (Figure 65).

To quickly navigate to and view a particular Section or Sub-section of the PeopleMap Report, click a Section or Sub-section listed in the left column and the right side view will automatically navigate to the Section or Sub-section upon which you clicked. You may also quickly scroll through the list of Sections and Sub-sections by using the left column scroll bar (e.g., to determine categories you may want to exclude) or use the scroll bar on the right side to navigate the entire report.

MS JANE	SAMPLE-DOCUM	IENT						
Record Gr	aphical Display Addres	s Map Web A	Analytics Report -				Peopl	leMa
 Return to List 					AA	Save Report Template		\mathbb{X}
Included	Excluded	No Data	Email Addresses (3)				1	•
Possible People I	nformation	*	Email		Source			
Person Overvie	ew (1)	×	jane.sample@teschmkt.	com	Work Affiliations		12	н
Death Records	(7)		drsampledocument@jan	e	(2	21.		
Death Records	(2)		JANE SAMPLE@SBCGLOBAL NET People Email				(2	8
Date of Birth Su	immary (1)	×	Diverse Beesrds					
SSN Summary	(1)	×	Divorce Records (i)					
			Date of Decree	State	Confidence Score	View Full Text		
Name variation	(¢)		08/24/2009	MN	85%	Full-Text		8
Addresses (6)		×						
Email Address	es (3)	×	Conceal & Carry Wea	pons Permits (1)				*
Divorce Record	ls (1)	×	Permit Status	Address	Confidence Score	View Full Text		
Conceal & Carr	y Weapons Permits (1)	SX.	PERMITTED	0000 MUSIC ROAD PIGEON FORGE, TN 37876	.99%	Full-Text		(M)

Figure 7-4. Quick view Email Addresses by clicking Email Addresses in left column

Records existing in the online PeopleMap Report contain links to full-text Source information for additional context on the information in the report summary. Full-text Source information provides all record details, including the source and often date information. Click any full-text Source link to open a window containing the full-text Record details inline with the report.

Email Addresses (3)	×	Conceal & Carry Weapons Permits (1)					
Divorce Records (1)	×	Permit Status	Address	Confidence Score	View Full Text		
Conceal & Carry Weapons Permits (1)	*	PERMITTED	0000 MUSIC ROAD PIGEON FORGE, TN 37876	99%	Full-Text	[M]	

Figure 7-5. Click Full-Text link to view full text of an individual record

Carry Conceal TENNESSEE	led Weapons Permit: JANE SAMP	LE-DOCUMENT
	Carry C	oncealed Weapons Permit Record
Source Informat	lion	Permit Information
State: Information Current Through Database Last Updated: Update Frequency: Current Date:	TN 02/01/2013 8 03/26/2013 ARCHIVE ONLY 09/21/2014	Permit Status: PERMITTED
Name and Perso	onal Information	
Name: Address:	JANE SAMPLE-DOCUMENT 0000 MUSIC ROAD PIGEON FORGE, TN 37876	
End of Document		? 2014 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Work

Figure 7-6. Full-Text record

Note The Attachments section contains all of the information you have added to the report, including any graphical displays, address maps, and web analytics results.

MS JANE	SAMPLE-DO	CUMENT											
Record G	raphical Display	Address Map	Web Analytics	Report -									PeopleM
A Return to List										AA	Save Report To	emplate	
Included	Excluded	No Data	Add	ress Map At	tachment (1)	1)							
Other Addres	s Associations (17) ×	1		1.0					10	S. Cal		
Possible Neighb	ors			3 2 4 4		1	so all	A.	1.45 A			9.13	
Neighbors of Addresses (1	Current & Previous 048)	×	2015	1. 1 m				1.3		Ser.			
Attachments			1.	1.00		5 5 16 9			1435785		and the		
Address Map	Attachment (1)	×		0	*	1 40	Q		0.11	1	H and A		
Possible Named	Parties			-	3-2-5	Contraction of	solution of	and the second s		4	State.	1	9
Business Ass	ociations (1)	×	2 Witness		a' 2.5.2	Series .		1	1 1 13		10 S.A.	3. 4	ł.
No Documents F	ound		-		22-12	a stop	1.28	28.24				1	
No Documents Sources (19)	s Were Found In Th	iese ×	4	- A		12	T	1	1.95		1.4	e ante	
Permissible Use	\$		E Go	ogle	E B Can	-	S.		al an a to		ta	14	

Figure 7-7. Map attached to PeopleMap Report

DEGREES OF SEPARATION AND OTHER ADDRESS ASSOCIATIONS

First degree of separation identifies others with a last name and address match to the subject. Second and third degrees cast incrementally wider nets, increasing the chances of finding relatives with greater tolerance for false positive results.

Relative Analysis	×
Degree of Separation to Include	
First	
O Second	
O Third	
Display Options	
Display Full Detail for each Relative	
O Display Summary for each Relative	
Save Options Cance	

Need high-rez image

Figure 7-8. Degrees of Separation window

Other Address Associations finds people at the subject's addresses that do not share the same last name.

Other Address Associations	×
Display Options	
Display Full Detail for each Associate	
O Display Summary for each Associate	
Associates Options	
 Associates for the three most Current Addresses 	
Associates for all Addresses	
Limit To	
Same Time Frame	
+/- Two Years	
Save Options Cancel	

Figure 7-9. Other Address Associations window

Neighbors of Current & Previous Addresses runs a radius search on the subject's addresses to find others who reside or have resided in close proximity to the subject.

Neighbors of Current & Previous Add	resses	1
Neighbors Options Neighbors for the three most Current Addresses Neighbors for all Addresses 		
7. M.	Save Options	ancel

Figure 7-10. Neighbors of Current & Previous Addresses window

CUSTOMIZING PEOPLEMAP REPORTS

PeopleMap Reports may be customized so that you can place information you need most at the top of a report and/or exclude information not needed in a report.

Included Sections and Sub-sections may be dragged and dropped to customize the view of the online PeopleMap Report. To customize the view by moving Sections and Sub-sections, click on a Section or Sub-section and hold your mouse button while moving your mouse to drag and drop a Section or Sub-section. Included Sub-sections may be excluded from the PeopleMap Report by clicking the "x" in the right corner of a Sub-section.

All records and data (Sub-sections) that you exclude from the PeopleMap Report are listed under the Excluded tab but can be restored by clicking the **plus (+) sign** to the right of the Excluded Sub-section.

MS JANE	SAMPLE-DO	CUMENT							
Record Gra	phical Display	Address Map	Web Analytics	Report 👻				People	eMap
Return to List						AA	Save Report Template	- 20	00
Included	Excluded	No Data	SSM	Summary (1)				,	•
Possible People II	formation		SS	N	Source				
Name Variation	s (5)		+ 99!	9-99-XXXX - SSN not issued				(8)	
Date of Birth Su	mmary (1)		+ Add	resses (6)					
Death Records	(2)		+ Ad	dress					
Possible Asset In	formation		611	OPPERMAN DR, SAINT PAUL, MN 55123-1341	DAKOTA County				
Possible Adverse	Information		Re	ported 01/01/2008 - 01/01/2008					
Possible Busines	s & Employment		By	People Household 01/01/2008 - 01/01/2008	People Household				
Full-Text Docume	nts		By	People Find	People Find				

Figure 7-11. Click + to restore excluded sub-sections into the PeopleMap report

If you only want to remove a specific piece of information you may do that using the Delete x's on the right-hand side of the page. Whereas the left column include/exclude removes or adds entire sections, this feature allows precision removal of unwanted data.

You may also navigate down to the full-text section of the Report and Remove full-text records from the report. Removing a full-text record will also remove all Source references to it in the Summary sections.

Save Report Template allows you to save the customized version of your own report template to use with other subjects in the future. Click Save Report Template to open a window in which you will name the template and add an optional template description. After naming the template and adding an optional description click Save Template. A message will appear to confirm that the template was saved.

MS JANE	SAMPLE-DO	CUMENT					
Record Gra	phical Display	Address Map Web	Analytics Report -				PeopleMap
Return to List				AA	Save Report Templat		□ • ×
Included	Excluded	No Data	SSN Summary (1)			ave Repo	rt Template
Possible People In	formation		SSN	Source			
Name Variation	s (5)	+	999-99-XXXX - SSN not issued				(8)
Date of Birth Su	mmary (1)	*	Addresses (6)				
Death Records	(2)	+	Address				

Figure 7-12. Save Report Template button

Custom report templates save you time by retaining the section and subsection formatting changes you have made for all subsequent report subjects.

Save Report Template	×
Name of Report Template	
Description of Report Template	_
Save Template Cance	

Figure 7-13. Save Report Template window



Figure 7-14. Template successfully saved

Report Templates are available for selection alongside the Premier and Basic report types on the Report Overview page and in the Report drop-down menu.

Report 🔹	
Report Overview	
PeopleMap Report (Premier) - Default	
PeopleMap Report (Basic)	
Test 1	

Figure 7-15. Report template available in report drop-down menu

To make a customized report your Default report, go to the Report Overview and click the **Create Report** button for the customized report.

To delete a custom report, go to the Report Overview page and click **Delete** on the report you want to remove.

REPORTS TOOLBAR/TOOLS

Available tools include the following:



- Return to List returns to the initial Public Records Results List.
- Display Options allows you to modify the appearance of text as displayed for your Report, including size, font type, and margin width. Click Display Options, modify text size, font type, and margin width, view the modifications via the Preview box, and click Save, or click Cancel to exit Display Options.
 - **Note** If you have previously modified Display Options and wish to Restore Default Options, click the **Restore Default Options** link within the Display Options window.
- Save to Folder allows you to save PeopleMap Reports to folders within WestlawNext. Click Save to Folder to open a window displaying your WestlawNext folders, select an existing folder by clicking on it and click Save, or click New Folder to create a new WestlawNext folder (you will need to name it and select a location for it and click OK before you can save your PeopleMap Report in it), create a new folder, select the new folder by clicking it and click Save to save your PeopleMap Report to the new folder. Reports may be shared with others that have the same or greater access rights to Public Records in WestlawNext as the person who foldered the record. A person who is not authorized to access the foldered public records information will be blocked from viewing the records.

Save 1 Item To:		
MY FOLDERS		
🧱 Patricia's Research		
New Folder		
Save	Cancel	

Figure 7-16. Save PeopleMap report to WestlawNext Folder

- **Note** When saving a PeopleMap Report it is a "point-in-time" report in other words, data saved at a particular point-in-time.
- Note Selecting a results category is not required and it will go to People by default in the main Public Reports template and People Information template. All other more granular templates default to the Content Category of the template in the Reports workflow. Easily toggle to the other categories. By selecting a results category, the preference selected will apply the next time you search with that particular template until you change the results category setting.
- Delivery Options allows you to email, print, and download reports or send them to Amazon Kindle. See "Delivery Options" on page 35 for specific instructions and information related to Delivery Options.
- Fullscreen Mode allows you to view a full screen version of the Report Overview.

WestlawNext Research History

The WestlawNext History feature keeps track of all research performed by the user, including PeopleMap research. PeopleMap research appears in a WestlawNext User's History and is available at no additional charge until 2:00 a.m. the following day.

		All Content	Public Reco	ords		1004646527 Folders + History +	Alerts Sign Off
Westla	wNext"	Q - Search Publi	o Records		Recent Documents View all	Recent Searches View C	lose Recent History
MS JANE	SAMPLE-DO	OCUMENT			PeopleMap Report (Premier): JANE SAMPLE- DOCUMENT	advanced: NAME(jane) & NA(sample-document) (0) Search Type: Boolean T&C	
Record Gr	anhical Display	Address Man	Web Analytics	Report .	Aircraft: SAMPLE-DOCUMENT JANE 001SD	Content: Public Records - Records jane sample-document (16)	People
A Return to List]				Divorce: JOHN SAMPLE-DOCUMENT, JANE SAMPLE-DOCUMENT	Search Type: Plain Language Content: Overview Jurisdiction: All State & Federal	
Included	Excluded	No Data	SSN	Summary	Corporate Records & Business Registrations:	advanced: NA(jane /2 sample-document) (0) Search Type: Boolean T&C	
Possible People I	information		Addre		240 SUMMIT AVENUE SAINT PAUL, MN 55102	Content: Public Records - Records	
Name Variation	15 (5)		+	esses (c)	Business Profile: JANE'S SAMPLE-DOCUMENT	advanced: NA(jane /2 sample) (13) Search Type: Boolean T&C	
1.5.1.014			Addr	ress	240 SUMMIT AVENUE SAINT PAUL, MN 55102-2121	Content: Public Records - Businesses	
Date of Birth Su	ummary (1)		+ 611 (OPPERMAN		jane sample (15) Search Type: Plain Language	18
Death Records	(2)		+ Repo	eople House		Jurisdiction: All State & Federal	

Figure 7-17. PeopleMap research available in WestlawNext History

To view your History list, simply select **View all** and the History Searches screen will appear. From here, you can see the date and time of each search as well as the Client ID for your search. You also have the ability to access your Folders from this screen.

			powered by WestSearch	11487423 Folder:	
WestlawNex		Q + Enter search terms, citations, databases, anything	All State & Federal 👻	SEARCH	Patricia's Resear (2)
Folders 🚯 Histo	ory				
Documents Searches All History Date	**	History: Searches			>> RELATED LINKS
Last 30 Days	•	Description	Date/Time •	Client ID	
NARROW: Apply Filters Cancel		advanced: jane sample-document (2) Search Type: Boolean T&C Content: Public Records - People	02/07/2015 11:51 AM	11487423	
Client ID	4	advanced: jane sample document (386) Search Type: Boolean T&C Content: Public Records - People	02/07/2015 11:51 AM	11487423	
11487423 4	4	advanced: jane sample (0) Search Type: Boolean T&C Content: Public Records - Records	02/07/2015 11:39 AM	11487423	
		advanced: jane sample (386) Search Type: Boolean T&C Content: Public Records - People	02/07/2015 11:29 AM	11487423	
		advanced: jane sample document (0) Search Type: Boolean T&C Content: Public Records - Records	02/07/2015 11:22 AM	1004646527	
		advanced: jane sample document (14) Search Type: Boolean T&C Content: Public Records - Businesses	02/07/2015 11:22 AM	1004646527	

Figure 7-18. History Searches screen

6 Records

Overview

The Records workflow is a full-text search of all available billions of public records. The records workflow is a complete replacement of WestlawClassic database signon searching. The records workflow completely supports WestlawClassic queries.

Records Results

Content is alphabetized and relevancy ranked. An improvement over legacy systems, users can now view all related information pertaining to their search instead of being constrained by a single database of information.

VIEW:		Back to Public Records	
People	1	Records (39)	
Businesses	1	Address Historical View all 2	
Records	39		
NARROW: Apply Filters Cancel		Address Historical: SAMPLE-DOCUMENT, JANE Date of Beth: 010001551 Cby: MINIEAPOLIS State: MIN 20: 55555 Address Historical: SAMPLE-DOCUMENT, JANE Cby: Fadault: State: MIN: 20: 55123	
Record Type People Information	8	Aircraft Viewall 1	
Assets Adverse Information Business & Employment	8 12 7	1. Aircraft: SAMPLE-DOCUMENT JANE Lass Active Date: 02072007 Street: 010 OPPERIAN DRIVE Cey: EAGAN State: NN Reg Mark: 0015D	B
. Censes	1	Arrests Viewall 1	

Figure 6-1. View Records search results

FILTER (NARROW) RECORDS RESULTS

The Records Results page includes tools by which you can filter (narrow) the results and access fulltext records. Filtering allows you to efficiently narrow your results and locate the correct record(s). Filtering options include:

- People Information
- Assets
- Adverse Information
- Business & Employment
- Licenses

VIEW:	
People	1
Businesses	1
Records	39
NARROW:	
Apply Filters Cancel	
Record Type	
People Information	8
· Assets	8
Adverse Information	12
Business & Employment	7

Figure 6-2. Records Results Filtering Options

When the user clicks into a specific content set filter, more granular filter options pertaining to the content are displayed.

Filter by People Information

Records Results can be narrowed by all People Information or by specific People Information records.

- Clicking the People Information + will expand the category and allow you to select specific People Information records by which you can narrow your Records Results. Records counts indicating the number of records related to your search appear to the right of the People Information category and sub-categories.
- 2. Click the **People Information** checkbox to filter by all People Information or select specific People Information sub-categories by clicking the boxes next to the sub-categories by which you wish to narrow your results.
- 3. If People Information is the only filter you wish to apply to your Records Results data, click **Apply Filters**. The filter will be applied to update your Records Results data and provide you with a narrowed set of results.
 - **Note** You can set other filter options before clicking Apply Filters to narrow your results even further.

NARROW:		
Apply Filters	Cancel	
Record Type		
😑 🔝 People Inform	ation	8
Address H	listorical	2
E Death		2
Email		1
Marriage		1
New Move	ers	1
People Fin	der	1

Figure 6-3. Filter Records by People Information

Filter by Assets

Records Results can be narrowed by all Assets or by specific Assets.

- 1. Clicking the Assets + will expand the category and allow you to select specific Assets records by which you can narrow your Records Results. Records counts indicating the number of records related to your search appear to the right of the Assets category and sub-categories.
- 2. Click the **Assets checkbox** to filter by all Adverse Information or select particular sub-categories of Assets by clicking the boxes next to the sub-categories by which you wish to narrow your results.
- 3. If Assets is the only filter you wish to apply to your Records Results, click **Apply Filters**. The filter will be applied to update your Records Results list and provide you with a narrowed set of results.
 - **Note** You can set other filter options before clicking Apply Filters to narrow your results even further.



Figure 6-4. Filter Records by Assets

Filter by Adverse Information

Records Results can be narrowed by all Adverse Information or by specific Adverse Information.

- Clicking the Adverse Information + will expand the category and allow you to select specific Adverse Information records by which you can narrow your Records Results. Records counts, indicating the number of records related to your search, appear to the right of the Adverse Information category and sub-categories.
- 2. Click the Adverse Information checkbox to filter by all Adverse Information or select particular sub-categories of Adverse Information by clicking the boxes next to the sub-categories by which you wish to narrow your results.
- 3. If Adverse Information is the only filter you wish to apply to your Records Results data, click **Apply Filters**. The filter will be applied to update your Records Results data and provide you with a narrowed set of results.
 - **Note** You can set other filter options (e.g., assets, licenses) before clicking Apply Filters to narrow your results even further.

Record Type	
People Information	8
Assets	8
Adverse Information	12
Arrest	1
Bankruptcy Filing	2
Criminal & Infraction	2
Divorce	1
Healthcare Provider Sanctions	1
C Lawsuit	1
Lien/Judgment Filing	3
Uniform Commercial Code Filings	1

Figure 6-5. Filter Records by Adverse Information

Filter by Business & Employment Records

Records Results can be narrowed by all Business & Employment records or by specific Business & Employment records.

- 1. Clicking the **Business & Employment +** will expand the category and allow you to select specific Business & Employment records by which you can narrow your Records Results. Records counts, indicating the number of records related to your search, appear to the right of the Business & Employment category and sub-categories.
- 2. Click the **Business & Employment checkbox** to filter by all Business & Employment records or select particular records sub-categories by clicking the boxes next to the sub-categories by which you wish to narrow your results.
- 3. If Business & Employment is the only filter you wish to apply to your Records Results data, click **Apply Filters**. The filter will be applied to update your Records Results data and provide you with a narrowed set of results.
 - **Note** You can set other filter options before clicking Apply Filters to narrow your results even further.



Figure 6-6. Filter Records by Business & Employment

Filter by Licenses

Records Results can be narrowed by all Licenses or by specific Licenses.

- 1. Clicking the Licenses + will expand the category and allow you to select specific Licenses by which you can narrow your Records Results. Records counts, indicating the number of records related to your search, appear to the right of the Licenses category and sub-categories.
- 2. Click the **Licenses checkbox** to filter by all Licenses or select particular Licenses by clicking the boxes next to the licenses by which you wish to narrow your results.
- If Licenses is the only filter you wish to apply to your Records Results data, click Apply Filters. The filter will be applied to update your Records Results data and provide you with a narrowed set of results.
 - **Note** You can set other filter options before clicking Apply Filters to narrow your results even further.



Figure 6-7. Filter Records by Licenses

RECORDS RESULTS TOOLS

Additional Records Results tools include the following:

- Back to Public Records Click the **Back to Public Records** link to return to the Public Records category page at which you can initiate an entirely new search.
- View All links Located to the right of each Records Results category indicating the number of records available within a particular category. Each results category will only show the first five results unless you click the View All link next to a category. Click any View All link to view all records in a particular category.

VIEW:	~	Back to Public Records
People	1	Records (33)
Businesses	1	Address Historical Viewell 2
Records	39	
NARROW:		1. Address Historical: SAMPLE-DOCUMENT, JANE Date of Birth: 01/00/1951 City: MINIEAPOLIS ISlate IMN . Zip: 55555
Apply Filters Cancel		2. Address Historical: SAMPLE-DOCUMENT, JANE ChylEAGAN I Shate MN 12/p 55/123

Figure 6-8. Click Back to Public Records / Click View All link(s)

Viewing Records Results

Content Sets are listed in alphabetical order by record category on the right side of the Records Results page with content filtering options (as described above) in the left column of the page. A scroll bar to the right of the Records Results List allows you to quickly scroll through the categories of records available

for viewing.

VIEW:		Back to Public Records	
People		Records (39)	
Businesses	1	Address Historical View all 2	
Records	39		
NARROW: Apply Filters Cancel		1. Address Historical: SAMPLE-DOCUMENT, JANE Date of Brith: 01000/1951 Cby: IMINEAPOLIS State: HN Ze: 55555 2. Address Historical: SAMPLE-DOCUMENT, JANE Cby: Facal: III State: HN : 55123	
Record Type	8	Alrcraft View all 1	
Assets Adverse Information Business & Employment Licenses	8 12 7 4	1. Aircraft: SAMPLE-DOCUMENT JANE Last Activity Date: 0207/2007 Street: 610 OPPERMAN DRIVE City: EAGAN State: MN Reg Mark: 00150 Arrests View all 1	D
Search other sources: News Dockets Patents (* Public Records (*		1. Arrest: SAMPLE-DOCUMENT JANE State INI	ж.
Company Information 💣		1. Bankruptcy Filing: Filing Date: 12/192001 Filing Type: CHAPTER 7 Filing Location: BKRTCY/D.IIIINI 2. Bankruptcy Filing: SAMPLE-DOCUMENT JANE	

Figure 6-9. View Records Results List

Click an individual record title to display the full-text record, where you can view it and/or take other actions including setting Display Options, Add/View Annotations, Save to a Folder, Select a Delivery Method, and Fullscreen Mode. You can also return to the Records Results List by clicking **Return to List**.

cument			
Return to list 1 of 2 results >		Go to 👻 🔺	A 🖉 🕈 🔯 🖬 🔹 🤇
TO ORDER COPIES OF A	ANY DOCUMENTS LISTED BELOW, CALL WESTLAW COURTEXPRESS		PEOPLE
1-877-DOC-RETR (1-877-3	62-7387) (Additional Charges Apply)		SAMPLE-DOCUMENT JOHN
Current Date: 9/21/2014			JOHN SAMPLE-DOCUMENT
Source: US BANK	RUPTCY COURT DISTRICT OF MINNESOTA (MINNEAPOLIS)		JOHN SAMPLE-DOCUMENT
CASE INFORMATION			
Court:	US BANKRUPTCY COURT DISTRICT OF MINNESOTA (MINNEAPOLIS)		
Case Title:	IN RE: JANE SAMPLE-DOCUMENT		
Date Filed:	12/18/2001		
Date Discharged:	03/28/2002		
Case Type / Chapter:	BANKRUPTCY: CHAPTER 7		
Case Details:	ASSET, VOLUNTARY		
Key Nature of Suit:	BANKRUPTCY; CHAPTER 7 (060.15)		
CREDITOR INFORMA	TION		

Figure 6-10. Full-Text Record/Return to Records Results List

After viewing a full-text record and returning to the Records Results List, an **Eyeglasses icon** appears to the right of the record as an indicator that you previously viewed it in the last 30 days for the current Client ID associated with your research. The Eyeglasses icon appears immediately after viewing a full-text record. If you discontinue your research for the Client ID in which you viewed the record and then go back to researching for the same client – within 30 days of your prior research – the Eyeglasses icon will appear to remind you that you previously viewed the record.

Out-of-plan content will initially be masked except for the content, title and counts. Click on a record to accept any additional charges and view the record.

Record Type	8	Aircraft View all 1		
Assets Adverse Information Business & Employment Licenses	8 12 7 4	1. Aircraft: SAMPLE-DOCUMENT JANE Last Activity Date: 0207/2007 Street: 610 OPPERIMAN DRIVE City: EAGAN State: INN Reg Mark: 0015D Arrests: View #1.1	or 6	
Search other sources: News Dockets Patents Public Records Company Information		1. Arrest: SAMPLE-DOCUMENT JANE State: MV Bankruptcy Filings View all 2	79	
		1. Bankruptoy Filing: Filing Date: 12/162001 Filing Type: CHAPTER 7 Filing Location: BKRTCY/D.MMML	Previously viewed in last 30 days	for current Client ID
		2. Bankruptcy Filing: SAMPLE-DOCUMENT JANE Filing Date: 04/19/1995 Filing Type: CHAFTER 7 Filing Location: Bankr. D. Minn.		

Figure 6-11. Eyeglasses icon indicating a previously viewed record

When viewing a full-text record, people related to the record may be listed to the right of the record. Clicking on the **name of a related person** opens a Person Summary with options to fully expand the Person Record by clicking the **View this Person** button, or create a Person Record report by clicking the **Create Report** button. If you expand a related person in the People Category of the full-text record before delivering results, the additional person information can be delivered inline with the full-text record by selecting the Content to Append tab in the Delivery Option window (see below for additional details on Delivery Options). This feature can be helpful to provide additional relevant information about an entity with the full-text record.

ocument				
Return to list 1 of 1 results			A	A 🔽 - 🔯 🔤 - 🕱
Bate 40 To			PEOPLE	Addresses:
	SAMPLE-DOCUMENT JANE	E 611 OPPERMAN DR SAINT PAUL, MN 55123-1341		
Add a note to a full-text record.			SAMPLE-DOCUMENT JOHN	DAKOTA COUNTY
Norde Report of the second second			JOHN SAMPLE-DOCUMENT	Reported N/A
	Aircraft Record		JOHN SAMPLE-DOCUMENT	610 OPPERMAN DR SAINT PAUL, MN 55123-1340
Source Information	Registration In	formation		DAKOTA COUNTY
Information 09/12/2014 Current	Registration Mark (N-Num):	001SD		AKA:
Through:	FAA Region of	WESTERN-PACIFIC		JOHN & JANE SAMPLE-DOCUMEN
Database Last 09/17/2014	Registration:			Many This Decase
Updated:	Registration	THE TRIENNIAL AIRCRAFT		view mis Person
Update MONTHLY	Status:	REGISTRATION FORM WSA MAILED		Create Report

Figure 6-12. Expand person record from full-text record

FULL-TEXT RECORDS TOOLS

Full-Text Records Tools include the following:



- Display Options allows you to modify the appearance of text as displayed for your full-text Record, including size, font type, and margin width. Click Display Options, modify text size, font type, and margin width, view the modifications via the Preview box, and click Save, or click Cancel to exit Display Options.
 - **Note** If you have previously modified Display Options and wish to Restore Default Options, click the **Restore Default Options** link within the Display Options window.

Annotations allows you to add notes to full-text records and to show such annotations. To add
a note, click the Annotations drop-down arrow and click Add Note, which will open a window
into which you will type your note and click Save.

AA 🥪 🗕	Notes (0)	E
and the second	1001001007	
o Add Note	Add a note to a full-text record.	
Show Annotations	Save	

The **Show Annotations checkbox** is checked by default and ensures that notes you add to a full-text record will show when the record is viewed. Uncheck the Show Annotations checkbox to prevent your notes from appearing with a full-text record.

Return to list 1 of 1 re	sults 💽			AA	🤛 - 🔯 🖂 - 📜
Note (1)			-		PEOPLE
A COMPANY AND A LOD A					SAMPLE-DOCUMENT JANE
Add a note to a f	ull-text record				SAMPLE-DOCUMENT JOHN
100000000000000000000000000000000000000					JOHN SAMPLE-DOCUMENT
	Ai	rcraft Record			JOHN SAMPLE-DOCUMENT
Source Inform	ation	Registration In	formation		
Information Current	09/12/2014	Registration Mark (N-Num):	001SD		
Database Last	09/17/2014	Registration:	THE TRIENNIAL AIRCRAFT REGISTRATION		
Update Frequency:	MONTHLY	Status:	FORM WSA MAILED AND HAS NOT BEEN RETURNED BY THE POST OFFICE		
Current Date:	09/21/2014	Last	02/07/2007		
Source:	FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION	Registration			
Registrant Info	ormation	Activity:			
Name:	SAMPLE-DOCUMENT JANE	Aircraft Inform	ation		
Address:	610 OPPERMAN DRIVE	Manufacturer:	AIR FLIGHT		

Figure 6-13. Full-text record with Annotation showing

• Save to Folder allows you to save a full-text record to folders within WestlawNext. Click Save to Folder to open a window displaying your WestlawNext folders, select an existing folder by clicking on it and click Save, or click New Folder to create a new WestlawNext folder (you will need to name it and select a location for it and click OK before you can save your full-text record in it), create a new folder, select the new folder by clicking it, and click Save to save your full-text record to the new folder. Foldered puplic records may be shared with others that have the same or greater access rights to Public Records in WestlawNext than the person who foldered the record. A person who is not authorized for the foldered Public Records information will be blocked from viewing the records.

Save 1 Item To:			X
MY FOLDERS			
📔 Patricia's Researcl	i)		
New Folder			
C	Save	Cancel	

Figure 6-14. Save full text record to WestlawNext folder

- **Note** Full-text records that have been saved to a folder will automatically update in the folder with any record updates made in PeopleMap.
- **Note** Records remain in the folder until deleted. Standard WestlawNext foldering rules apply with records available at no additional charge for one year.

 Delivery Options allows you to Email, Print, and Download full-text records or Send them to Amazon Kindle. Click the Delivery Options drop-down arrow and select a delivery option. All Delivery Options require you to choose to deliver either the Document only or the Document with Annotations and each has a Layout and Limits tab by which you can modify the text and layout of your full-text record. The Email option also requires you to enter the recipient's email address (or multiple email addresses); select a report format – Word, PDF, RTF, or WordPerfect; add an optional email note; and has a Content to Append tab by which you can append additional content. The Print option also includes a Content to Append tab to append additional content before printing. The Download option requires you to select a format option – Word, PDF, RTF, or WordPefect – and has a Content to Append tab by which you can append additional content before downloading. Send to Amazon Kindle requires you to enter a Kindle email address and includes a Help icon, which provides specific formatting and other requirements specific to delivering a report to Amazon Kindle.

Document				
Return to list 1 of 1 results			AA 😺 - 🔯	× (
14-1-14-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1			🗸 🖂 Email	
Note (1)	👄 Print			
June 29, 2014 10:10 PM 1004646527			E Download	
Add a note to a full-text record.			Nindle 1	I DI
			JUIN AMILLI	EP
	Aircraft Record		JOHN SAMPLE-	DOCUMEN
Source Information	Registration Information			
Information 09/12/2014	Peoletration 001SD			

Figure 6-15. Full-text record delivery options – Email, Print, Download, and Kindle

• Fullscreen Mode allows you to view a full screen version of the full-text Record. Click the Fullscreen Mode button to view the record in the full screen of your computer; click the button again to return to the default view.

You can create a report of the associated person by selecting the name from the right-hand side of the record. Once you select a name, you will be given the option to **View This Person** or **Create Report**.

Aircraft: SA	MPLE-DOCUMENT JANE x: 1 page)					
ument						
Return to list	1 of 1 results 🕨				AA 🔛 🕶 🔯 💌 🔹	
man				PEOPLE	View This Person	
Note (1) _0				JOHN SAMPLE-DOCUMENT		
June 29, 2014 1	10:10 PM 1004646527				Create Report	
Add a note to	a full-text record.			JANE SAMPLE-DOCUMENT		
	Aircraf	t Record				
Source Info	rmation	Registration Int	ormation			
Information	01/30/2015	Registration	001SD			
Current		Mark (N-Num):				
Through:		FAA Region of	WESTERN-PACIFIC			
Database La	st 02/04/2015	Registration:				
Updated:		Registration	THE TRIENNIAL AIRCRAFT			
Update	MONTHLY	Status:	REGISTRATION FORM WSA MAILED			
Frequency:			AND HAS NOT BEEN RETURNED BY			
Current Date	: 02/07/2015		THE POST OFFICE			
Source:	FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION	Last	02/07/2007			
Registrant I	nformation	Registration				
Name:	SAMPLE-DOCUMENT JANE	Activity:				
Address:	610 OPPERMAN DRIVE	Aircraft Informa	ition			
	EAGAN, MN 55123	Manufacturer:	AIR FLIGHT			
Additional	JOHN SAMPLE-DOCUMENT	Year of	1978			

Figure 6-16. View Person or Create report of the People Result

7 Business Results and Company Investigator

Businesses Results

After conducting a search, the default data presented is People Results, which is a list of individuals that may be the subject of your search. Click the **Businesses** radio button on the Public Records template or the businesses link at the top left of a Person or Record result to access business entities related to your search. Filters are available to manipulate the Businesses results list located to the left of the list. Other tools are also available on the Businesses Results page, including a Back to Public Records link that will return you to the search page from which you started your search.

VIEW:		Back to Public Records Businesses (1)			Disclaimen	s Hel
Businesses Records	1 39	1 - 1	Sort by: Relevance 🗸	Update Permissible Uses	= •	•
NARROW: Apply Filters Cancel Location MIN SANT PAUL Search other sources:	1	Business Name 1. SAMPLE-DOCUMENT DENTAL SERVICES LLC RISK FLAGS OFAC: he lation Global Sanctions: No Match	FEIN Filing Number: DC1478016-2 Filing Date: 08/25/2005 State of Incorporation: UNIVES/0TA. Date Incorporated: 08/25/2005	Address Address: 246 SUMMT AVE SANT PAUL, MN, 55102 United States		
News Dockets Patents Public Records Company Information			20 per page 👻		0	•

Figure 5-1. View Businesses search results

The Businesses Results page includes tools to filter results, change the number of results available per page, sort the results list, deliver a result list, access a Company Investigator report and Company Family Tree, where available.

The Businesses Results tools operate in the same manner as the People Results tools. See "Section 4, PeopleMap Results" on page 10 for specific instructions.

Each Business Name contained in the Businesses Results list is a link to further information, reports, and company family trees for each result. Click a business name to link to the Company Investigator page, which includes basic company information, a Company Family Tree button, and a Create Report button.



Figure 5-2. View Businesses

Note Company Investigator may be purchased separately or with a PeopleMap subscription to provide the most comprehensive due diligence solution.

8 PeopleMap Alerts

Stay on top of changes with PeopleMap Alerts

Now you have the ability to keep up with changes regarding your subject of interest. PeopleMap allows you to create Alerts for a person when you want to be notified if any key information changes on the person you are investigating. The Alerts feature automatically monitors the status of data you select at time intervals you select. Alert notices can be received on a periodic basis, from daily up to monthly frequencies, and delivered to you via an email or upon your next visit to the WestlawNext alert center.

The Alerts functionality allows you to choose to be alerted when any information changes on a person, or select only specific attributes, such as a new address or phone, to trigger an Alert.

Alerts are divided into the following data categories:

- Specific Attributes
- Potentially Adverse
- Potential Assets
- Licenses
- Business Information
- Person Information

When modifications or new facts are added to the record, PeopleMap sends a notification to keep you updated with the most current information.

EASY SETUP

Click the bell icon on your subject within PeopleMap to set up the report.

QUICK RETRIEVAL

Quick link in email connects you to the updated information from the alert.

FREQUENT ALERTING

Choose your own alert frequency for each subject.

- Monthly
- Bi-Weekly
- Weekly
- Weekday (M-F)
- Daily

SEAMLESS INTEGRATION

View PeopleMap Alerts within WestlawNext's alert center.

• Easily edit or delete alerts

9 Mobile PeopleMap

Overview

PeopleMap is compatible for use on most mobile devices, including tablets and Smartphones when using the WestlawNext full site at <u>www.next.westlaw.com</u>.

Note Some mobile browsers automatically flip a user to a mobile site, in which case you will need to click a full-site option in the browser option menu.

9 Help and Support

Technical Support

Contact Technical Support if you experience performance issues, encounter an error message or have other technical questions.

WestlawNext PeopleMap

1-888-728-7677 24 hours a day, 365 days a year

Customer Service

Contact Customer Service for billing or account assistance. 1-800-328-4880 7 a.m. to 8 p.m. CT, Monday – Friday west.westlawnextcustserv@thomsonreuters.com http://west.thomson.com/support/

Reference Attorneys

Contact a Reference Attorney if you need help researching a legal issue or working with WestlawNext PeopleMap. 1-800-REF-ATTY (1-800-733-2889) 24 hours a day, 365 days a year west.forms.westlaw@thomsonreuters.com

© 2015 Thomson Reuters. All rights reserved. L-389328/4-15 Thomson Reuters 610 Opperman Drive Eagan, MN 55123-1396

